N CITY OF BURLINGTON

Est. 1835

AGENDA
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, July 19, 2016 at 6:30 p.m.
Common Council Chambers, 224 East Jefferson Street

Mayor Jeannie Hefty

Edward Johnson, Alderman, 1% District

John Ekes, Alderman, 1% District

Ruth Dawidziak, Alderman, 2" District

Bob Grandi, Alderman, 2" District

Tom Vos, Council President, Alderman, 3" District
Jon Schultz, Alderman, 3" District

Thomas Preusker, Alderman, 4™ District

Todd Bauman, Alderman, 4™ District

1. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Citizen Comments

4. Chamber of Commerce Representative and Rescue Squad Representative

5. Approval of the Common Council minutes from July 5, 2016 (T. Preusker) .......ccccoorennnnninenineneneens
6. Letters and Communications: None

7. Reports by Aldermanic Representatives and Department Heads

8. REPOIS 1- 4 (T. BAUMAN) ..ottt sttt ettt
9. Payment of VOUChErS (E. JONNSON) ......c.ciiieiiiciiiseis ettt sn e
10. Licenses and PermitS (J. EKES) .....cuiiiiiiieiieeiie ittt et e e e sta e e e snaeeneens

11. Appointments and Nominations (R. DaWIdzZiak) ..........c.ccceiiveriiiieiiiiieie s
A. Appointment of four (4) new election inspectors for the 2016-2017 election year

12. Public Hearings: None
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Common Council — July 19, 2016

13. RESOLUTIONS:

A. Resolution 4798(17) to consider approving a Master Agreement for municipal engineering services
with Kapur and Associates, Inc. This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole
MEELING. (B. Grandi)......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt et et et e e e pg. 38

14. ORDINANCES: None

15. MOTIONS:

A. Motion 16-845 to consider approving the 2015 Annual Audit. This item was discussed at the July 5,
2016 Committee of the Whole meeting. (T. VOS) ...ccoiiiiiiiiiiiicie e pg. 50

B. Motion 16-846 to consider approving an Airport Hangar Lease with Burlington Aero Group at 1364
Mike Taxiway. This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting.
VST 011 72 SRR pg. 57

C. Motion 16-847 to consider approving an Airport Hangar Lease with MJJ Holding at 711 Airport Road.
This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting. (T. Preusker) .... pg. 64

16. ADJOURNMENT (E. Johnson)

Note: If you are disabled and have accessibility needs or need information interpreted for you, please call the
City Clerk’s Office at 262-342-1161 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.



COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 5

DATE: July 19,2016
SUBJECT: July 5, 2016 Common Council Minutes

SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
The attached minutes are from the July 5, 2016 Common Council meeting.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the attached minutes from the July 5, 2016 Common Council meeting.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
July 5, 2016 Common Council Minutes
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

City Clerk

300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, W1, 53105
(262) 342-1171 — (262) 763-3474 fax
www.burlington-wi.gov

CITY OF BURLINGTON
Minutes of the Common Council
Jeannie Hefty, Mayor
Diahnn C. Halbach, City Clerk
Tuesday, July 5, 2016

. Call To Order — Roll Call

Mayor Jeannie Hefty called the meeting to order at 8:11 p.m. starting with roll call. Aldermen
present: Ed Johnson, Bob Grandi, Ruth Dawidziak, Tom Vos, Jon Schultz, Tom Preusker and
Todd Bauman. Excused: John Ekes

Also present: City Administrator Carina Walters, Director of Administrative Services Megan
Watkins, City Attorney John Bjelajac, DPW Director James Bergles, Building Inspector
Gregory Guidry, Police Chief Mark Anderson, Fire Chief Alan Babe, and Greg Governatori of
Kapur & Associates.

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Citizen Comments

. Chamber of Commerce Representative and Rescue Squad Representative

e There were no representatives present.

. Approval of the June 21, 2016 Common Council Minutes

A motion was made by Vos with a second by Bauman to approve the Council Minutes from
June 21, 2016. With all in favor, the motion to approve the minutes was carried.

. Letters and Communications

A. Correspondence from Alderman John Ekes regarding his absence from the July 5, 2016
meetings.

A motion was made by Schultz with a second by Johnson to approve Letters and
Communications. With all in favor, the motion carried.

. Reports by Aldermanic Representatives and Department Heads

e City Administrator Carina Walters reminded everyone that they need to select citizen
participants for the upcoming Budget Partners, which is due by July 29, 2016; one person
for each of the Aldermanic representatives and four persons for the Mayor.
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July 5, 2016 Common Council Minutes

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

e DPW Director James Bergles stated that crack filling would begin this week along with
street sweeping, tree injections were completed as well as the first round stump grinding.
Bergles also commented about the vandalism found under the Bridge Street Bridge and the
efforts were being taken to remove the graffiti. In addition, Riverview Manor is seeking to
replace their parking lot lights with LED lighting and they are also concerned about their
sidewalk. Bergles also stated that the DPW will be replacing about 20-25 trees this year,
per budget allowance; the DPW Safety Program was started, and the department has also
begun implementation of Facility Dude, which will allow better communication to report
problems or issues.

e Alderman Schultz commented that his 4™ and youngest son had just completed the Safety
Town program and gave credit to Chief Mark Anderson for a well-run program.

Reports 1-2

A motion was made by Preusker with a second by Grandi approve Reports 1-2. With all in
favor, the motion carried.

Payment of Vouchers

A motion was made by Bauman with a second by Dawidziak to approve vouchers, pre-paids
and reimbursements in the amount of $100,452.89.

Roll Call Aye: Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Schultz, Preusker and Bauman. Nay: None.
Motion carried 7-0.

Licenses and Permits

A motion was made by Johnson with a second by Preuskder to approve all licenses and permits.
With all in favor the motion carried.

Appointments and Nominations

There were none

Public Hearings

There were none

Resolutions

A. Resolution 4795(14) to consider approving the purchase of a 2016 Mack Single-Axle
Patrol Truck from Mack Truck of Racine in the amount of $102,022.00 and a Plow and
Hydraulic package from Olsen Body and Trailer in the amount of $81,245.00 for a total
amount of $183.267.

A motion was made by Dawidziak with a second by Johnson to approve Resolution
4795(14).

2|Page
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July 5, 2016 Common Council Minutes

Roll Call: Aye: Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, VoS, Preusker, Schultz, and Bauman. Nay:
None. The motion was carried 7-0

Resolution 4796(15) to consider approving the purchase and installation of a 2016
Kenworth chassis for the Wastewater Treatment Plant tanker truck from Wisconsin
Kenworth in the amount of $96,726.00.

A motion was made by Grandi with a second by Vos to approve Resolution 4796(15).

Roll Call: Aye: Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Schultz, and Bauman. Nay:
None. The motion was carried 7-0

Resolution 4797(16) to consider approving Task Order Number One Hundred with Kapur
& Associates for design and construction management for sanitary sewer improvements
on S. Pine Street in the amount of $18,920.00.

A motion was made by Vos with a second by Grandi to approve Resolution 4797(16).

Roll Call: Aye: Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Schultz, and Bauman. Nay:
None. The motion was carried 7-0

14. Ordinances

A. Ordinance 2005(1) to consider a rezone for property located at 340 Church Street from

Rs-2, Single-Family Residential District to I-1, Institutional District.

A motion was made by Schultz with a second by Dawidziak to approve Ordinance
2005(1).

Robert Musgrave, 372 Church Street, commented that despite his previous hesitations
regarding group homes, he has since come to understand better the nature of business that
this property will be used for and conceded that this would be a good location for the PAC
program. Musgrave suggested, however, that council place a stipulation in the agreement
that if/when the school district no longer needed the property that a covenant be put into
place that would require the property to go back to its original designation as Residential.

Attorney Bjelajac responded that there is already a restrictive covenant in place and that
it will be enforced by the City if the property were to be sold again.

15. Motions

A. Motion 16-843 to review and approve the Downtown Strategic Plan report.

A motion was made by Preusker with a second by Vos to approve Motion 16-843.

With all in favor, the motion carried.

16. ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION

1.

Wis. Stats 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the
investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session.

3|Page
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July 5, 2016 Common Council Minutes

e To discuss the sale of property located at 256 W. State Street, Burlington, WI 53105.

A motion was made by Bauman with a second by Vos to adjourn into closed session at 8:39
p.m. Roll Call: Aye: Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Schultz, and Bauman. Nay:
None. The motion was carried 8-0.

17. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION

1. Consideration and possible approval of the sale of 256 W. State Street, based on
recommendations from the City Council.

A motion was made by Bauman with a second by Preusker to reconvene into Open Session at 9:24
p.m. With all in favor, the motion carried.

A motion was made by Preusker with a second by Vos to direct staff to continue negotiations with

Brian Torgerson, for the sale of the property located at 256 W. State Street. With all in favor, the
motion carried.

16. Adjourn
A motion was made by Grandi with a second by Preusker to adjourn the meeting. With all in
favor, the meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m.

Meeting Minutes Respectfully Submitted by:

Diahnn C. Halbach
City Clerk
City of Burlington

4|Page
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COMMON COUNCIL

ITEM NUMBER: 8

DATE: July 19, 2016
SUBJECT: Reports 1-4

SUBMITTED BY: City Staff

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
Attached please find the following reports:

Report 1 - Library Board Minutes — May 24, 2016

Report 2 - Plan Commission Minutes — June 14, 2016
Report 3 - Park Board Minutes — June 16, 2016

Report 4 - Committee of the Whole Minutes — July 5, 2016

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Council approve Reports 1-4

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:

This item is scheduled for consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Minutes
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Minutes of the Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees

The Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees met on Tuesday, May 24, 2016 in the Burlington
Public Library Meeting Room. Present were Pat Hoffman, Peter Smet, Ed Johnson, and Bridget
Savaglia, also new members Ellen Blair, Megan Barker, and Lori Haas were present. Excused was
Mike Kelly. Also present were Administrative Assistant Linda Berndt and Automation System
Administrator Tammy McCarthy. Excused was Director Gayle Falk . Also present was High School
representative Paige Taylor. This is Paige's last meeting as our school representative.

Hoffman called the meeting to order at 4:01.

Hoffman had everyone go around the table and introduce themselves and tell a little bit about
themselves as well.

Election of Officers and Committee Appointments: Smet nominated Pat Hoffman for the office of

President, Savaglia seconded. Hoffman accepted the nomination. There were no other nominations.

Motion passed. Smet nominated Bridget Savaglia for the office of Vice President, Blair seconded.
Savaglia accepted the nomination. There were no other nominations. Motion passed. Johnson
nominated Megan Barker for the office of Secreatary, Savaglia seconded. Barker accepted the
nomination. There were no other nominations. Motion passed.

Hoffman made the following committee appointments:
Building & Grounds - Chair: Savaglia, Haas, Barker
Personnel - Chair: Hoffman, Smet, Blair

Finance - Chair: Keily, Smet, Johnson

Minutes of the April 26™ meeting were approved. Johnson moved approval, and Haas seconded.
Motion passed.

The May 2016 General Fund Bills, Prepaids, Reimbursements, and April General Deposits were
discussed and approved. Johnson moved approval and Smet seconded. Motion passed.

Smet moved and Johnson seconded the motion to approve the April 2016 Trust Deposits and May
2016 Trust Fund Bills. Motion passed.
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Committee Reports:

Hoffman reported from the Personnel Committee regarding the Director's Evaluation. The question
was raised if it was necessary to conduct a yearly evaluation. Each Board member was given a copy
of the Library Policy Manual. The page concerning Employee Evaluation and Tenure is the section
that was discussed. Hoffman read the section stating that the date that the Board would initiate
the evaluation would be in March instead of April. Also, the Personnel Committee's evaluation would
be presented to the full Library Board in closed session for consideration in April instead of May.
Smet moved to waive the evaluation for this year and do it next year to the dates that have been
presented of March and April. Haas seconded the motion. Motion passed.

Federated Library Report:
There was no report at this time.
Old Business:

There was no Old Business.

New Business:

Goals and strategic planning: Hoffman passed out a handout showing the goals of 2015 and what has
been met and accomplished and goals that continue to be in effect for the current year.

Update on joint facility feasibility study by City of Burlington: Hoffman stated the City, County,
and School District are having meetings to choose a firm to conduct a feasibility study. This study
would consider the current facilities of each entity, future needs and what areas could be shared in
a joint facility including City Hall, School District Offices, Library, Senior Center and a County
Building.

Review of National Library Week Survey results: Nothing new was reported at this time.

Directors Report:

Monthly Report: Hoffman discussed and explained the report to the new members.

BPL in the News: There were several calendar items in the papers this month. Copies of an article

were handed out that Torhorst brought to last month's meeting, entitled “Enlisting public libraries
to help fight homelessness”.

Public Communications to the Board: There was a thank you from Vicki Biehn regarding their use of
our Display Case for their Sexual Awareness display.

10 of 149



Hoffman stated that Joy Schnupp has left our Library and has taken a position at the Williams Bay
Library as their new Director. Hoffman has a card for everyone to sign and Linda will forward it on
to Joy.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:02 p.m. Johnson and Blair seconded. Motion passed.

Our next meeting will be on Tuesday, June 28™ at 4:00 p.m. in the Burlington Public Library meeting
room.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward Johnspn
Aldermanic Répresentative
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Department of Public Works
Street & Park and Water Departments
2200 S. Pine Street, Burlington, WI 53105
(262) 539 -3770 / (262) 539-3773
www.burlington-wi.gov

CITY OF BURLINGTON PARK BOARD MINUTES
THURSDAY, JUNE 16,2016 6:30PM
2200 S. Pine Street, Burlington, WI 53105

Chairman Darrel Eisenhardt, Commissioners Jennifer Amborn, Clay Brandt, Lori Hintz, Jeff Schopp, Jill Stobber, Ald. Ruth
Dawidziak, Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works, Student Rep: Nicole Witbrod

Acting Chairman Clay Brandt called the Park Board meeting to order at 6:30P.M.

Roll Call: Present: Commissioners Jennifer Amborn, Jeff Schopp, Jill Stobber, Ald. Ruth Dawidziak,
Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works. Excused: Darrel Eisenhardt and Lori Hintz. Absent: Nicole
Witbrod. Also attending: Carina Walters, City Administrator.

Introduction of Park Board Commissioner Jill Stobber: Chairman Clay Brant introduced Jill Stobber
as the newly appointed Park Board Commissioner and was welcomed by the Park Board Commissioners.

Approval of May 19, 2016 Park Board Minutes: Chairman Brant entertained a motion for approval of
the May 19, 2016 Park Board Minutes. Motion to approve made by Commissioner Amborn. Seconded
by Ald. Dawidziak. All voted aye, motion carried

Citizens Comments: None
Aldermanic Report: Ruth Dawidziak: None

DPW Report: Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works: Jim Bergles reported that the Boat Ordinance
would be going to the COW on July 5, 2016 and then onto the Common Council July 21, 2016 for final
approval.

Mr. Bergles stated the boats at Rockland Lake, by McCanna Park, would have until November 1, 2016 to
be removed. Signs would be posted giving notice that boats have to be removed, and after November 1%,
the Department of Public Works would move forward with removing abandoned boats.

Mr. Bergles also reported he spoke to Mr. Yopp regarding the removal of healthy trees from the parkway
in front of Mr. Yopp’s house. Several Park Board Commissioners had also gone to look at Mr. Yopp’s
trees and agreed the trees were healthy. Mr. Bergles told Mr. Yopp that he would be contacting him in

DRAFT PARK BOARD MINUTES JUNE 16,2016 Page 1
12 of 149

CITY OF BURLINGTON



October or November as the Department of Public Works had hundreds of dead ash trees that still needed
to be removed, in addition to other parkway trees that needed attention.

Mr. Bergles reported that Dustin Bersch had donated $71.00 to the Park Board Dev. Fund. The money
Mr. Bersch donated came from various candy machines Mr. Bersch has throughout the City.

New Business:

Bike Burlington — MaDonna Carr: Sherry Gorden was present to represent Bike Burlington.
Ms. Gorden stated Keith Kemper had emailed a map to Jim Bergles outlining where they would
like to see a bike route through the City of Burlington. They would like the Park Board to make it
a priority to have bike routes with signage completed.

Carina Walters, City Administrator stated that before routes could be designated, it would have to
be looked at carefully by Staff, the Police and Fire Departments, to determine if the areas met
with criteria for emergency crews in addition to width of streets proposed.

Ald. Ruth Dawidziak stated she would like to see the information to be incorporated with the
upcoming budget to determine if the costs associated would be something the Common Council
would have to budget for. The Park Board funds have been limited to receiving $25,000, per year,
budgeted by the Common Council.

Ms. Gorden stated that Bike Burlington would like to see signage that could bring bicyclists from
one area of interest to another throughout Burlington that would connect trails to Parks, Schools,
places of interest, the Community Swimming pool, the downtown area, and other bike trails.

Various items were discussed regarding signage, from stencils on the roads to way finding signs.

Deb Rintamaki stated the former DPW Supervisor had talked with MaDonna Carr regarding the
Street Dept. painting the bike trail markings on the roadways, but that Bike Burlington would pay
for the signage. Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works stated the paint machine the City owns
would not be able to paint thin enough lines needed for a bike lane, and that it would probably
have to be contracted out.

Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works will contact Blake Thiesen of Ayres to see if he has
suggestions, and will work with Bike Burlington to start the move for Bike Trails forward, by first
determining what areas would be best to use.

Burlington Historical Society — Dennis Tully: Mr. Tully was not present. No items discussed.

Devor Pool — Board Discussions: Carina Walters, City Administrator came before the Park
Board to ask what they envisioned for the future of Devor Park. With Ms. Walters was Jeanne
Otter of the Burlington Community Pool Committee.

e eee— e e eeeeee——————————————————— e N
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Ms. Walters stated Ayres and Associates, Inc., has completed a site assessment plan and has done
preliminary designs that will go to the Common Council and then to referendum in November.
Ayres will be offering three different options for pricing.

The current infrastructure is antiquated. There are equipment, ADA, electrical, and basement
issues, just to name a few. The playground and parking area is not ADA accessible and there are
only portables for bathrooms. The Pool has been run for 50 years by four service groups,
although the land is owned by the City of Burlington.

Possible thoughts for the future area in addition to the pool would be to make the area multi-
functional, with a meeting room and concession stand that could be rented out for various uses
year round. The bathrooms could have automatic locking doors that would open at a specific time
in the morning and lock at night.

Multi- level slides, a basketball hoop, a kiddie splash pad, and inflatable floating objects that
could be added in. There would be something that would appeal to everyone.

Ms. Otter stated there is going to be a fund raiser on August 27™ with music, a silent auction, food
available and open family swimming, being held by the Wagner Foundation Committee.

Commissioner Stobber stated she had previously been on a pool committee and would be
interested in learning more. Ms. Otter mentioned that anyone who was interested in helping the
Pool Committee would be welcome to do so and should let her know.

Old Business: None

Other Items: Hans Block came before the Park Board seeking approval to have installed a bike rack at
Echo Park in honor of his late father Jerry Block. He presented a drawing of the bike rack, which would
be a powder coated black made of steel. In addition to the iron cycle style rack, there would be two hoop
like metal racks that would also be cemented into the ground. Mr. Block’s family will pay the entire cost.

Mr. Block also requested placing a marble or granite etched paver by the bike rack to acknowledge their
father. Jerry and Mary Block enjoyed the concerts at Echo Park for years, and Mr. Block’s family thought
Echo Park would be a great way to honor their father.

Mr. Block stated his family thought it would be nice if the bike rack could be completed and installed
prior to the last concert at Echo for the year. Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works was not sure if this
would be possible, but asked Mr. Block to work with Aaron DeGrave, Park Foreman, to see if this could
be accomplished.

Mr. Block had previously talked to Aaron DeGrave, Park Foreman about placement of the bike rack and
Mr. DeGrave had determined that the best choice for placement would be to the right hand side on the
path to Echo Lake, in the area where a large tree had been removed.

DRAFT PARK BOARD MINUTES JUNE 16, 2016 Page 3
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Chairman Brandt entertained a motion to allow the bike rack and memorial in Echo Park at the location
to be approved by Aaron DeGrave, Park Foreman or Jim Bergles, Director of Public Works. Seconded
by Ald. Dawidziak. All voted aye, motion carried.

There being no further items for discussion, Chairman Brandt entertained a motion to adjourn.
Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Amborn. Seconded by Commissioner Schopp. All
voted aye and Chairman Brandt adjourned the meeting at 7:50 P.M.

Minutes respectfully submitted by:

Deb Rintamaki
Department of Public Works

e T ————————————————
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Administration Department

300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105

(262) 342-1161 — (262) 763-3474 fax
www.burlington-wi.gov

Minutes
City of Burlington Plan Commission
June 14, 2016, 6:30 p.m.

Mayor Jeannie Hefty called the Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Roll call: Alderman
Bob Grandi; Commissioners Chris Reesman; and Chad Redman were present. Alderman Tom Vos;
Commissioners Darrel Eisenhardt; and Andy Tully were excused.

Mayor Hefty stated if anyone is here for Graef, our new City Planner, this item has been cancelled and
rescheduled for the July meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Alderman Grandi moved, and Commissioner Reesman seconded to approve the minutes of May 10,
2016. All were in favor, and the motion carried.

LETTERS & COMMUNICATIONS
None

CITIZEN COMMENTS
None

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. A Public Hearing to hear public comments regarding a Conditional Use application from
Sandra Wagner for property located at 109 N. Pine Street to use the existing building for
printing services with small specialty printing.

e Mayor Hefty opened the Public Hearing at 6:32 p.m.
e There were no comments.

Alderman Grandi moved, and Commissioner Redman seconded to close the Public Hearing at 6:32 |
p.m. All were in favor and the motion carried.

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS

A. Consideration to approve a Conditional Use application from Sandra Wagner of Nobius
Press, LLC, for property located at 109 N. Pine Street to use the existing building for printing
services with small specialty printing, subject to Mark Roffers’ June 7, 2016 memorandum to
the Plan Commission.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion.

e There were no comments. 16 of 149



Commissioner Reesman moved, and Alderman Grandi seconded to approve a Conditional Use

application to use the existing building for printing services, subject to Mark Roffers’ June 7, 2016
memorandum to the Plan Commission as follows:

e The approval is for a specialty print shop, occupying up to 4,000 square feet
(providing an opportunity for modest future expansion without a subsequent or
amended conditional use permit), and not requiring hazardous chemicals.

e Should the conditional use require exterior alterations to the site or building, beyond
signage or cosmetic adjustments in the determination of the Zoning Administrator, a
site plan shall be submitted and approved per applicable zoning ordinance standards.

e Permanent signage shall require a sign permit from the City prior to installation.
Temporary signs are allowed for a period not exceeding 30 days.

o The applicant shall satisfy any other requirements of the Plan Commission, Zoning
Administrator, Fire Inspector, and Building Inspector that relate to zoning ordinance,
fire code, or conditional use permit standards. Some of the work described in the
“lease letter of intent” submitted with the application may require a building permit
before its completion.

All were in favor and the motion carried.

B. Consideration to approve a Site Plan application from Andrew Kowalski of Platinum Salon &
Spa, for property located at 308 S. Pine Street to expand the existing entrance to 53 feet,

allowing patrons to back up safely onto S. Pine Street, subject to Kapur & Asscociates’ June
9, 2016 memorandum to the Plan Commission.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion.

e Gregory Guidry stated the back parking lot of this property was sold off years ago and is an
existing non-conforming lot. The current owners are trying to create a safer situation by
expanding the entrance. Gregory Guidry stated Kapur & Asscociates suggests a triangular
stamping in the middle of the drive making it look like two separate driveways. Gregory
Guidry also commented that Dairy Queen is also over the 35 foot required opening.

e Alderman Grandi questioned how the parking on the south side would be angled. Andy
Kowalski, owner, stated there is a verbal agreement with Dairy Queen to use the side of the
building for parking, so the parking spaces could be angled more to allow for pulling out
safely. Mr. Kowalski further stated they cut the curb without the City’s approval, not
realizing approval was necessary, but had to cover up the hole with gravel for safety
concerns. Mr. Kowalski explained by keeping the drive flat it allows the snow to be plowed
without going over the curb. Alderman Grandi commented this is a good solution to a bad
situation as long as Dairy Queen is on board with this. City Administrator Walters
questioned if they could get a written agreement from Dairy Queen to okay the shared

parking lot. Mr. Kowalski stated it should not be an issue since Dairy Queen uses their lot
for car shows. '
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e There were no further comments.

Alderman Grandi moved, and Commissioner Reeman seconded to approve a Site Plan application to
expand the existing entrance to 53 feet with a triangular colored stamped center keeping the drive flat,
subject to Kapur & Associates’ June 9, 2016 memorandum to the Plan Commission as follows:

eKapur & Associates had previously provided a recommendation to install a
depressed curb head in place of the standard six-inch vertical face curb between the
driveways, and allow a second driveway exit on the north side of the parcel.

All were in favor and the motion carried.

C. Consideration to recommend approval to the Common Council of a Rezone Map
Amendment application from Peter Smet of Burlington Area School District for property
located at 340 Church Street to rezone the property from Rs-2, Single Family Residential

to I-1, Institutional District, subject to Mark Roffers’ June 7, 2016 memorandum to the
Plan Commission.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion.

e Gregory Guidry stated BASD runs a school program for young adults with special needs and
would like to stay in a residential setting for learning, which requires the 340 Church Street
property to be rezoned. City Administrator Walters stated that in Mark Roffers’ report he
had some concerns about zoning this property to I-1. She stated Mark Roffers would like to
see what the public’s input is, wanted more information regarding how many students,
teachers and other staff to decide if the driveway is suitable for the proposed use and would

like a City Attorney’s review. City Administrator Walters commented there should not be
any issues from a legal stand point.

e City Attorney John Bjelajac stated from a legal stand point there is no issue with rezoning
this property from Rs-2 to I-1, but highly suggests a restrictive covenant should be written
to avoid future issues. This would allow the property to be converted back to the Rs-2
residential zoning in the event the Project Active Citizen (PAC) Program would be sold and
not used for a school. Alderman Grandi stated he felt the residents should be allowed to
voice their opinions. City Administrator Walters stated there will be a Public Hearing at the
June 21 Common Council meeting. Peter Smet, superintendent of BASD, 101 N. Kane

Street, stated the school held a public vote of electors in the Burlington School District with
a vote of 47-0 to purchase the property.

e There were no further comments.
Commissioner Reesman moved, and Alderman Grandi seconded to recommend approval of a Rezone
Map Amendment application to rezone property located at 340 Church Street from Rs-2 to I-1, subject
to Mark Roffers’ June 7, 2016 memorandum to the Plan Commission as follows:

e Limit future uses to the training center only (not any other I-1 use).

e Exclusively serve persons with disabilities/special needs.
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 Not occupied as residential quarters, which have been stated in writing. _
e Specify a maximum number of employees, which is one teacher and three aides.

e Specify a maximum number of persons served which consists of an average of ten
students per year.

e Provide a minimum of two off-street parking spaces.

e Restrict changes to the exterior of the building so as to detract from the residential
character of the neighborhood within which the residential-based public educational
outreach center is located.

e City provided with the right but not the responsibility to enforce standards.

e Restriction may not be modified or removed without City approval.

All were in favor and the motion carried

ADJOURNMENT

Alderman Grandi moved, and Commissioner Redman seconded to adjourn the meeting at 6:48 p.m. All
were in favor and the motion carried.

Recording Secret@ywc\ﬁa "N
Kristine Anderson

Administrative Assistant
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 9

DATE: July 19,2016

SUBJECT: Prepaid and Vouchers

SUBMITTED BY: Steve DeQuaker, City Treasurer @/

Vd

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
Attached please find the Prepaid and Voucher list for bills accrued through July 19, 2016:

Total Prepaid: $478,554.61
Total Vouchers: $143,713.83

Grand Total: $622,268.44

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

5 Largest Disbursements on the Prepaid and Voucher List:

1. $219,414.00 Zarek Insurance, Inc. — City of Burlington Coverage

$ 120,255.00 Zarek Insurance, Inc. - EMC Work Comp 05/15/16 — 05/15/17

$ 76,789.24 Mass Mutual — Moving Funds from Lincoln Benefit Life to Mass Mutual

$ 37,880.97 Johns Disposal Service, Inc. — Contracted Monthly Billing Garbage/Recycle
$ 30,100.00 Burlington Volunteer Fire Dept. — Annual Contribution

Al

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Common Council accept and approve these Prepaid and Vouchers in the
amount of $622,268.44.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Detail listing of Prepaid and Vouchers.
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For Council Approval July 19, 2016

Prepaid: 07/01/16  $ 402,551.98

07/08/16 $ 76,002.63
Total Prepaid $ 478,554.61
Vouchers: 07/19/16  $ 143,713.83
GRAND TOTAL $ 622,268.44
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting

Page:

1

Jun 30, 2016 02:55PM

Report dates: 07/01/2016-07/01/2016

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
100160000
100-160000 PREPAID EXPENDITURES ZAREK INSURANCE, ING. Zarek Insurance Acct No, BURL117 7502 06/20/2016 218,111.00  07/01/2016
100-160000 PREPAID EXPENDITURES ZAREK INSURANCE, INC. Renewal - EMC Work Comp 7503 06/20/2016 120,255.00  07/01/2016
Total 100160000 338,366.00
100454511000
100-454511-000 CLERKS REVENUE WI DEPT OF JUSTICE (10267 Wi DEPT OF JUSTICE CIB G1026T 05/16 05/31/2016 1,757.00  07/01/2016
Total 100454511000; 1,757.00
100515132220
100-516132-220 ADMIN - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 5843-033-004 (split) 5843033004JUN16 06/27/2016 290.76  07/01/2016
Total 100515132220: 290.75
100515132225
100-515132-225 ADMIN - TELEPHONE AT&T 171-798-6300 001 (split) 5345062301 06/19/2016 326.47  07/01/2016
Total 100515132225: 326.47
100515132330
100-515132-330 ADMIN - INSVC TRAINING & ~ WATKINS, MEGAN Reimbursement - Mileage 062316 06/23/2016 54,00 07/01/2016
Total 100515132330: 54.00
100515141220
100-515141-220 FINANCE - UTILITY SERVIC ~ WE ENERGIES 5843-033-004 (split) 5843033004JUN16 06/27/2016 176.53  07/01/2016
Total 100515141220: 176.53
100515141225
100-515141-225 FINANCE - TELEPHONE AT&T 171-798-6300 001 (split) 5345062301 06/19/2016 195.88  07/01/2016
Total 100515141225: 195.88
100515141330
100-5156141-330 FINANCE - TRAVEL DEQUAKER, STEVE Reimbursement Hotel & Mileage 062116 06/27/2016 340.62  07/01/2016
Total 100515141330: 340.62
100525211225
100-525211-225 POLICE - TELEPHONE AT&T 171-798-6300 001 (split) 5345062301 06/19/2016 52236 07/01/2016
Total 100525211225: 522.36
100525220220
100-526220-220 FIRE - UTILITY SERVICES WE ENERGIES 8403-026-057 8403026057JUN16 06/22/2016 1,016.19  07/01/2016
Total 100525220220: 1,015.19
100525220275
100-5626220-275 FIRE - VOLUNTEER FIRED  BURLINGTON VOLUNTEER FIR  Annual Payment to Fire Dept Volunteers 2016 06/30/2016 30,100.00  07/01/2016
Total 100525220275: 30,100.00
100525231220
100-525231-220 BLDG INSP UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 5843-033-004 (split) 5843033004JUN16 06/27/2016 51.92  07/01/2016
prcpa\f 22‘of 149
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting

Report dates: 07/01/2016-07/01/2016

Page:

2

Jun 30, 2016 02:55PM

Motion for Approval by:

Motion Seconded by:

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number  Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
Total 100525231220 51.92
100535321261
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 0455-414-409 0455414409MAY16  06/20/2016 237,31 07/01/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 4404-149-064 4404149064JUN16 06/20/2016 3714 07/01/2016
100-536321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 5043-084-318 5043084318JUN16 06/23/2016 27.25  07/01/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 5465-979-181 5465979181JUN16 06/22/2016 62.561 07/01/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 7256-756-558 7255756558JUN16 06/22/2016 21,71 07/01/2016
Total 100535321261: 385.92
251555511225
251-556511-225 TELEPHONE AT&T 171-798-6300 001 (split) 5345062301 06/19/2016 26118 07/01/2016
Total 2561555511225: 261.18
621575740220
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 0469-455-267 0469455267JUN16 06/20/2016 14725  07/01/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 7672-906-685 7672906685MAY16  06/13/2016 206.57  07/01/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 8098-971-449 8098971449JUN16 06/14/2016 32.45  07/01/2016
Total 621575740220: 386.27
621575740225
621-575740-225 TELEPHONE DS TDS WWTP 262-539-3646 262-539-3646 06/16  06/19/2016 184.23  07/01/2016
Total 621575740225: 184.23
621575740330
621-575740-330 SEWER - INSRVC TRNG & T WEITHAUS, CHRISTOPHER Reimbursement - CDL Renewal 062116 06/28/2016 7400  07/01/2016
Total 621575740330: 74.00
622509210000 )
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY AMAZON,COM/GE MONEY Cables 291857334263 05/11/2016 17.08  07/01/2016
Total 622509210000 17.08
. 623575740200
623-575740-200 FUEL FOR RESALE ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC  100LL AVIATION GASOLINE 373428 06/28/2016 28,046.58  07/01/2016
Total 623576740200: 28,046.58
Grand Totals: 402,551.98
Dated:
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting
Report dates: 07/08/2016-07/08/2016

Page: 1
Jul 13,2016 10:45AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
100454521001
100-454521-001 BOND FEES VILLAGE OF BRISTOL MUNICIP  Hetchler, Richard; Case: 16040002 16040002 07/01/2016 232.80  07/08/2016
Total 100454521001: 232.80
100484847000
100-484847-000 Developer Reimbursement BURLINGTON AREA SCHOOLD  Refund of Deposit Fee 340 Church St 201605018 07/06/2016 503.61  07/08/2016
100-484847-000 Developer Reimbursement NOBIUS PRESS, LLC Refund of Deposit - Plan Commission 1.051787 07/07/2016 68.76  07/08/2016
Total 100484847000: 572.36
100515132225
100-516132-225 ADMIN - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 125,35 07/08/2016
Total 100515132225: 125.35
100515140330
100-5615140-330 CLERK - TRAINING & TRAV ~ HALBACH, DIAHNN UW-GB Clerk Institute Per Diem Cash 07/10116 07/08/2016 263.08  07/08/2016
Total 100515140330 263.08
100515141225
100-515141-225 FINANCE - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 57.57  07/08/2016
Total 100615141225 67.67
100515141330 .
100-515141-330 FINANCE - TRAVEL DEQUAKER, STEVE Mileage Reimbursement 2016JUNE 06/30/2016 20.52  07/08/2016
Total 100515141330: 20.52
100525211225
100-525211-226 POLICE - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 613.78  07/08/2016
Total 100525211225: 613.78
100525220225
100-625220-225 FIRE - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 88.82  07/08/2016
Total 100525220225: 88.82
100525231225
100-525231-225 BLDG INSP - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) - 9767548594 06/23/2016 39.99  07/08/2016
Total 100525231225: 39.99
100535321220
100-535321-220 STREETS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 1638-891-345 (split) 1638891345JUN16 06/27/2016 778.48  07/08/2016
100-535321-220 STREETS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 8430-081-671 (split) 8430081671JUN16 06/26/2016 34.59  07/08/2016
Total 100535321220: 813.07
100535321225
100-535321-225 STREETS - TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 62.34  07/08/2016
Total 100535321225: 62.34
100535321261
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 0818-594-802 0818594802JUN16 06/26/2016 17.33  07/08/2016
pf‘ epay 24 0£449
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting
Report dates: 07/08/2016-07/08/2016

Page:

2

Jul13,2016 10:46AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 0819-473-268 0819473268JUN16 06/27/2016 47.81  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 0838-352-542 0838352542JUN16 06/23/2016 22,76 07/08/2016
100-5356321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 0850-628-152 0850628152JUN16 06/23/2016 250.78  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 1269-762-568 1269762568JUN16 06/27/2016 37.61  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 2023-503-060 2023503060JUN16 06/26/2016 169.29  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 4432-157-647 4432157647JUN16 06/28/2016 18,919.45  07/08/2016
100-5356321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 5459-100-732 5459100732JUN16 06/28/2016 194.00 07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 5644-617-733 5644617733JUN16 06/26/2016 166,50  07/08/2016
100-5635321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 5695-147-539 5695147539JUN16 06/27/2016 150.90  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 6893-002-943 6893002943JUN16 06/23/2016 16.25  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 7245-068-041 7245068041JUN16 06/27/2016 134,06  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 7467-500-426 7467500426JUN16 06/27/2016 252,96  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 8499-073-119 8499073119JUN16 06/27/2016 226.57  07/08/2016
100-535321-261 STREETS - LIGHTING WE ENERGIES 9418-285-345 9418285345JUN16 06/27/2016 86.22  07/08/2016
Total 100535321261 20,681.49
100535321350
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  WE ENERGIES 7082-958-528 7082958528JUN16 06/27/2016 431.76  07/08/2016
Total 100535321350: 431,76
100555551220
100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 1638-891-345 (split) 1638891345JUN16 06/27/2016 389.25 07/08/2016
100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 2428-946-714 2428946714JUN16 06/27/2016 235,71 07/08/2016
100-5655551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 3243-370-777 3243370777JUN16 06/28/2016 37.69  07/08/2016
100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 3698-542-543 3698542543JUN16 06/28/2016 28.22  07/08/2016
100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 6419-916-677 6419916677JUN16 06/28/2016 16.66  07/08/2016
100-5655551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 6895-338-188 6895338188JUN16 06/27/2016 109.67  07/08/2016
100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 8430-081-671 (split) 8430081671JUN16 06/26/2016 17.29  07/08/2016
Total 100566551220: 834.39
100565639399
100-565639-399 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ~ BURLINGTON AREA CHAMBER  2nd gtr 2016 Room Tax 2016 2ND ROOMT  07/08/2016 5,956.68 07/08/2016
100-565639-399 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ~ RA CO CONVENTION & VISTOR  2nd qtr 2016 Room Tax 2ND QTR 2016 07/08/2016 5,956.68  07/08/2016
Total 100565639399: 11,913.36
251555511220
251-556611-220 UITLITIES WE ENERGIES 0810-148-657 0810148657JUN16 06/28/2016 1,257.83  07/08/2016
251-5655511-220 UITLITIES WE ENERGIES 5852-857-487 5852857487JUN16 06/27/2016 32.38  07/08/2016
Total 251566511220; 1,290.21
621575740220 -
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 1887-026-576 1887026576JUN16 06/22/2016 14,350.56  07/08/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 3602-583-285 3602583285JUN16 06/21/2016 26.19  07/08/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 4847-248-215 4847248215JUN16 06/23/2016 170,66  07/08/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 4897-650-087 4897650087JUN16 06/26/2016 60.46  07/08/2016
621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 6212-377-525 6212377525JUN16 06/27/2016 3,437.01  07/08/2016
Total 621575740220: 18,044.88
621575740222
621-576740-222 GAS WE ENERGIES 0862-239-067 0862239067JUN16 06/26/2016 471,97 07/08/2016
621-575740-222 GAS WE ENERGIES 2663-378-614 2663378614JUN16 06/26/2016 10.66  07/08/2016
621-575740-222 GAS WE ENERGIES 3646-902-199 3646902199JUN16 06/26/2016 13.82  07/08/2016
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Aphroval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting

Report dates: 07/08/2016-07/08/2016

Page;

3

Jul13,2016 10:46AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
Total 621575740222: 496.35
621575740225
621-575740-225 TELEPHONE VERIZON WIRELESS Verizon: Acct 286396851-00001 (split) 9767548594 06/23/2016 39.99  07/08/2016
Total 621575740225; 39.99
621575740310 )
621-575740-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA ~ PETTY CASH WWTP PETTY CASH WWTP POST OFFICE 2016JUNE 06/30/2016 94.00  07/08/2016
Total 621575740310: 94.00
622506220000
622-506220-000 POWER WE ENERGIES 0882-547-355 (split) 0882547355JUN16 06/27/2016 390.91  07/08/2016
622-506220-000 POWER WE ENERGIES 3267-293-366 3267293366MAY16  06/26/2016 662.90 07/08/2016
622-506220-000 POWER WE ENERGIES 6271-254-861 (split) 6271254861JUN16 06/26/2016 3,308.55  07/08/2016
622-506220-000 POWER WE ENERGIES 7255-465-187 7255465187JUN16 06/26/2016 19242  07/08/2016
Total 622506220000: 4,554.78
622506230000
622-506230-000 SUPPLIES WE ENERGIES 0882-547-355 (split) 0882547355JUN16 06/27/2016 13.82  07/08/2016
622-506230-000 SUPPLIES WE ENERGIES 6271-254-861 (split) 6271254861JUN16 06/26/2016 1110 07/08/2016
622-506230-000 SUPPLIES WE ENERGIES 6499-874-589 6499874589JUN16 06/26/2016 14.18  07/08/2016
Total 622506230000 39.10
622509350000
622-509350-000 GENERAL-PLANT-SUPPLIE ~ WE ENERGIES 1638-891-345 (split) 1638891345JUN16 06/27/2016 778.48  07/08/2016
622-509350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE ~ WE ENERGIES 8430-081-671 (split) 8430081671JUN16 06/26/2016 3459  07/08/2016
Total 622509350000: 813.07
623575740200
623-575740-200 FUEL FOR RESALE ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC ~ JET A 373429 06/29/2016 13,765.21  07/08/2016
Total 623575740200: 13,765.21
623575740225
623-575740-225 TELEPHONE AT&T 262 757 0907 307 4 26275709070616 06/25/2016 104,36 07/08/2016
Total 623575740225: 104.36
875232000
875-232000 MUNICIPAL COURT DEP SPALLONE, NICHOLAS Refund - paid wrong municipality 16.020442 07/05/2016 10.00  07/08/2016
Total 875232000 10.00
Grand Totals:

76,002.63
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting
Report dates: 07/08/2016-07/08/2016

Page; 4
Jul 13,2016 10:45AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name

Description

Invoice Number

Invoice Date

Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount

Dated:

Motion for Approval by:

Motion Seconded by:
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting

Report dates: 07/19/2016-07/19/2016

Page:
Jul 13,2016 10:42AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number  Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount
100424246000
100-424246-000 STATE FORESTRY GRANT STUMP GRINDING 4 LESS ground out stumps 1868 07/06/2016 2,275.65
Total 100424246000: 2,275.65
100515111248
100-515111-248 REPAIRS AND MAINT BLDG ~ MENARDS Menards Acct 32120261- Blinds for Mayors Office 10664 07/06/2016 45.94
Total 100515111248 45,94
100515121310
100-515121-310 MUNI COURT - OFFICE SUP  PITNEY BOWES MUNI SUPPLIES 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100515121310: 69.57
100515132310
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1090162 06/29/2016 2.75
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1092624 07/06/2016 2.75
100-516132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  Office Copying Equipment, LTD Sharp MX-500IN Digital Color Imager (split) (332486 06/30/2016 41711
100-516132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  PITNEY BOWES ADMIN SUPPLIES 3300668912 06/04/2016 77.30
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  PITNEY BOWES BLDG INSPECTION 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.61
Total 100515132310: 569.52
100515132399
100-515132-399 ADMIN - SUNDRY EXPENSE  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - City Hall 06/29/16CH 06/29/2016 5.85
Total 100516132399: 5.85
100515140310
100-515140-310 CLERK - OFFICE SUPPLIES ~ PITNEY BOWES CLERK 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100515140310: 69.57
100515141310
100-515141-310 FINANCE - OFFICE SUPP/P  Office Copying Equipment, LTD Sharp MX-500IN Digital Color Imager (split) (332486 06/30/2016 30.00
100-515141-310  FINANCE - OFFICE SUPP/P  PITNEY BOWES FIN SUPPLIES 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100515141310: 99.57
100515142310 '
100-515142-310 ELECTIONS - OPERATION S PITNEY BOWES ELECTIONS 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100515142310: 69.57
100515154298
100-515154-298 ASSESSOR - CONTRACT S~ ACCURATE 35% of Contract for 2016 2016JUNE 07/06/2016 6,680.00
Total 100515154298: 6,680.00
100515161220
100-515161-220 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT BJELAJAC, JOHN M Veolia Contract 156100-029D 16 06/28/2016 586.00
100-515161-220 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT BJELAJAC, JOHN M General File - 2016 16100-000D 6 06/28/2016 3,030.00
100-515161-220 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT BJELAJAC, JOHN M CDA: 2016 Sale of Land to Burlington Core Upgrades ~ 16100-004D 3 06/28/2016 195,00
100-515161-220 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT BJELAJAC, JOHN M Tree In River 16100-045D 1 06/28/2016 240.00
100-5156161-220 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT BUELAJAC, JOHN M Subrod Settlement Agreement 16100-046D 1 06/28/2016 165.00
Total 100515161220 4,215,00

Vouchers
6N -\d>-\L
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting
Report dates: 07/19/2016-07/19/2016

Jul 13,2016 10:42AM

GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number ~ Invoice Date Net
Invoice Amount
100515161272
100-515161-272  ATTORNEY - MUNICIPALC ~ BJELAJAC, JOHN M Municipal Court General File - 2016 16100-099D 7 06/28/2016 4,807.50
Total 100515161272: 4,807.50
100525211310
100-5256211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA  PITNEY BOWES POLICE SUPPLIES 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100526211310: 69.57
100525220159
100-5256220-159 FIRE - CLOTHING ALLOWA  LARK UNIFORM OUTFITTERS Lark Uniform - Fire Dept 223591 06/20/2016 6.00
100-525220-159 FIRE - CLOTHING ALLOWA  PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS PAUL CONWAY FIRE PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 0387990-IN 07/06/2016 464.98
Total 100526220159: 47098
100525220211
100-525220-211 FIRE - PHYSICALS ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMEN  ODC - Professional Service 11710 06/15/2016 1,740.00
Total 100525220211: 1,740.00
100525220242
100-5256220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Credit 10015 - 06/28/2016 31.78-
100-526220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 9007 06/16/2016 56.77
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE  BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING BUMPER TO BUMPER FIRE DEPT 1-308946 07/09/2016 34.47
Total 1005256220242; 59.46
100525220244
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING BUMPER TO BUMPER FIRE DEPT 1-308168 06/25/2016 22,81
Total 100526220244: 22.81
100525220248
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG  MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Credit 10016 06/28/2016 17.99-
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG  MENARDS Acct# 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 10678 07/06/2016 38.62
100-526220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG  MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 8899 06/15/2016 17.99
Total 100525220248: 38.62
100525220295
100-525220-295 Medical Service/Supply EMERGENCY MED. PRODUCTS  EMP Fire Dept Supplies 1835971 07/06/2016 192.00
Total 1005256220295: 192.00
100525220298
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ ALSCO ALSCO - FIRE DEPT CUSTOMER #012470 IMIL1092615 07/06/2016 52.99
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ JAMES IMAGING SYSTEMS, IN  RICOH/MP161 Fire Dept 687095 06/30/2016 253.03
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Oak Park Place 5436 06/17/2016 137.50
100-526220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Rugan's 5440 06/29/2016 235.00
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  fire alarm control panef review Milw Ave Retail 5441 06/29/2016 285.00
100-526220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~ MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Spring Brook Town Homes 5442 06/29/2016 195.00
100-526220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE  MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Fox Crossing Phase 2 5447 07/07/2016 1,235.00
Total 100525220298: 2,393.562
100525220310
100-526220-310 FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES PITNEY BOWES FIRE 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
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Total 100525220310: 69.57

100525220389 } ]

100-525220-389 FIRE - PROTECTIVE CLOTH 5 ALARM FIRE AND SAFETY MSA Facepiece headstraps 158636-1 06/24/2016 2,803.00
Total 100625220389: 2,803.00

100525231310 .

100-525231-310 BLDG INSP - OPERATING Office Copying Equipment, LTD Sharp MX-500IN Digital Color Imager (split) C332486 06/30/2016 30.00
Total 100525231310: 30.00

100535321157

100-536321-157 Inservice Training WI RURAL WATER ASSOCIATIO - Consolidated Safety Assessments (spli) 2989 06/30/2016 973.46
Total 100535321157 973.46

100535321159

100-5356321-159 - STREETS - CLOTHINGALL  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1090162 06/29/2016 64,96

100-5356321-159 STREETS - CLOTHINGALL  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1092624 07/06/2016 64.96
Total 100535321159: 129.92

100535321225

100-535321-225 STREETS - TELEPHONE DIGICORP Digicorp - Voice Labor (split) 313802 06/27/2016 48.00
Total 1005635321225; 48.00

100535321240

100-535321-240 STREETS - FUEL, OIL & LU  JERRY WILLKOMM INC. Willkomm Inc - DPW supplies 363958 06/28/2016 200.10
Total 100535321240: 200.10

100535321248 :

100-535321-248 STREETS REP & MAINTBL  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1090163 06/29/2016 10.93
Total 100535321248: 10.93

100535321298

100-635321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  LOIS TIRE SHOP,INC. Unit 600 386549 06/27/2016 421.00

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  R.K.W. REDI-MIX CONCRETE|  MASON SAND 80690 06/22/2016 663.00

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 16.0113.01 2016_Burlington_General 88000 06/22/2016 134.50

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  OUTDOOR LIGHTING CONST IN  Repair - Bridge & State Street 7491 06/13/2016 4,275.74

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  OUTDOOR LIGHTING CONST IN  Repair - Hwy 36 & Hwy W 7492 06/13/2016 3,762.25

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  OUTDOOR LIGHTING CONST IN  Repair - Milw & Grove - Knockdown 7519 06/27/2016 3,129.60

100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY 4  CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY DPW (split) 5005459721 06/29/2016 32.78
Total 100535321298 12,408.87

100535321310

100-535321-310 STREETS - OFF SUPP/POS  REINEMANS, INC. 16pk 1" mounting square 104742 07/01/2016 2.96
Total 100536321310: 2.96

100535321350 g

100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS,  wiper blades 11156652 06/17/2016 132,00

100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS,  Air Filters 1115602 06/20/2016 21.77

100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS,  Air Filters 1116441 06/29/2016 56.54
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100-5356321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 9571 06/23/2016 129.99
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP MOTOR PARTS COMPANY, LLC MOTOR PARTS DPW STOCK 275896 07/01/2016 68.94
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  ZEP SALES & SERVICE ZEP DPW SUPPLIES (split) 9002299129 06/15/2016 197.28
100-5635321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP IBD, LLC |BD- shop 110144090 06/23/2016 104.50
Total 1005356321350: 716.02
100535321351
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 10001 06/28/2016 22.52
100-5635321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  REINEMANS, INC. mortar mix 104240 06/24/2016 12.40
100-5635321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G ~ SHERWIN INDUSTRIES, INC. Sherwin Ind D.V. HI Build Yellow Paint SC035866 06/24/2016 2,232.00
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  USABIueBook manhole cover 990090 06/28/2016 202.26
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G ~ KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 16.0112.01 Burlington 2016 Sidewalk Program 87999 06/22/2016 480.00
100-535321-3561 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  CRETEX MATERIALS INC Cretex Materials: Cretex Screen 165006 06/18/2016 84.37
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  PROPERTY SERVICES MAINTE 2016 Burl Sidewalk Program; PMNT 1 PAYMENT NO. 1 07/06/2016 19,048.91
Total 100535321351: 22,082.46
100545430298
100-545430-298 ANIMAL SHELTER WISCONSIN HUMANE SOCIETY ~ ANIMAL SHELTER CONTRACT 680 07/01/2016 798.47
Total 100545430298: 798.47
100555532350
100-555632-350 POOL. CGC,INC. Project No. CM16063 Devor Park - Pool Expansion 44541 06/27/2016 1,101.25
Total 100555532350 1,101.25
100555551157
100-556551-157 Inservice Training WI RURAL WATER ASSOCIATIO  Consolidated Safety Assessments (split) 2989 06/30/2016 973.46
Total 100555551157: 973.46
100555551159
100-555551-159 PARKS - CLOTHING ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1090162 06/29/2016 16.83
100-555551-159 PARKS - CLOTHING ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1092624 07/06/2016 16.83
Total 100555551159: 33.66
100555551211 :
100-555551-211 PARKS - PHYSICALS AURORA HEALTH CARE Acct #600016081 Brown, Arthur 143009836 05/23/2016 103.00
Total 100556661211: 103.00
100555551225
100-555551-225 PARKS - TELEPHONE DIGICORP Digicorp - Voice Labor (split) 313802 06/27/2016 24.00
Total 100556551225: 24,00
100555551242
100-566551-242 PARKS - REPAIR MAINT VE = LOIS TIRE SHOP,INC. Park Trailer 386940 07/05/2016 92.99
100-5666651-242 PARKS - REPAIR MAINT VE  LOIS TIRE SHOP,INC. Unit 108 387062 07/07/2016 24,00
Total 100555551242: 116.99
100555551244
100-555551-244 PARKS - REPAIR MAINT EQ  GERBER LEISURE PRODUCTS,  GERBER LEISURE PARTS 31741 06/20/2016 37.50
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Total 100555551244: 37.50
100555551248
100-555551-248 PARKS - REPAIR MAINT BL  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1090163 06/29/2016 5.46
Total 100555561248: 5.46
100555551298
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC CITY OF BURLINGTON DOG PARK A-128117 06/28/2016 80.00
100-555561-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE  PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY RENTAL DEVOR PARK A-128265 06/28/2016 90.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY RENTAL RIVERSIDE PARK A-128502 07/06/2016 180.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE  CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY 4 CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY DPW (split) 5005459721 06/29/2016 16.38
Total 100555551298 366.38
100555551350 )
100-555561-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  ELKHORN CHEMICAL & PACKA  ELKHORN CHEMICAL DPW 57660 07/01/2016 321,02
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  LOIS TIRE SHOP,INC. Park Trailer 386806 07/01/2016 325.44
100-556651-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 10051 06/29/2016 20.97
100-556561-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 10574 07/05/2016 20.97
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 9997 06/28/2016 169.70
100-556551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  REINDERS INC Reinders- stock 1640907-00 06/21/2016 310.43
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  REINDERS INC Reinders- parts for Unit 103 1642251-00 06/28/2016 1,361.02
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  REINDERS INC Reinders- cover-belt 1642728-00 06/30/2016 83.27
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  REINEMANS, INC. hardware 103960 06/21/2016 6.28
100-555651-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  REINEMANS, INC. plumbing parts 104120 06/23/2016 79
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP REINEMANS, INC. Basketball Net 104150 06/23/2016 15.28
100-555651-360 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP REINEMANS, INC. Max Bug Barrier 105039 07/07/2016 18.89
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/MTCE SUP  ZEP SALES & SERVICE ZEP DPW SUPPLIES (split) 9002299129 06/15/2016 197.27
Total 100555551350: 2,851.33
100555561350
100-555561-350 FORESTRY-REPAIRIMTCE REINEMANS, INC, tree removal supplies 104695 07/01/2016 62.07
Total 100555561350: 62.07
100565641298 )
100-565641-298 PLAN COMM - CONTRACT S KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 16.0002.01 Oak Park Place Plan Review 87992 06/22/2016 3,875.50
100-565641-298 PLAN COMM - CONTRACT S MDRoffers Consulting LLC Project: Current Planning Services 20160518 07/06/2016 1,120.00
Total 100565641298 4,995,50
100565641310 : .
100-565641-310 PLAN COMM - SUPPLIES, P PITNEY BOWES PLANNING 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 100565641310; 69,57
100575710297
100-675710-297 GARBAGE- CONTRACT SVC JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICEIN ~ CONTRACTED BILLING/RECYCLE 77050 06/24/2016 8,402.10
100-575710-297 GARBAGE- CONTRACT SVC JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE IN  Riverview Manor 78075 06/30/2016 479.00
Total 100575710297 8,881.10
100575710298
100-575710-298 GARBAGE - CONTRACT SV JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE IN CONTRACTED BILLING/GARBAGE 77050 06/24/2016 29,478.87
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Total 100575710298 29,478.87

100575710299

100-575710-299 GARBAGE- CNTRCT SVCS KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 15.0107.01 Burlington Landfill 2015-2016 87975 06/21/2016 2,663.50
Total 100575710299 2,663.50

251555511310 o

251-555511-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA  PITNEY BOWES LIBRARY SUPPLIES 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
Total 25615655511310: 69.57

452565639399

452-565639-399 Planning Expenditures BJELAJAC, JOHN M Aurora Condemnation; Lift Station Site 14100-077D 8 06/28/2016 45.00
Total 4562565639399: 45.00

462565641298

462-565641-298 Contract Services KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 16.0078.01 Burlington MS4 87995 06/22/2016 15,897.50
Total 462565641298: 16,897.50

465515132800

465-516132-800 CITY ADMINISTRATOR' FACILITYDUDE.COM Facility Dude - Sales Invoice 8-003744 06/30/2016 8,310.00
Total 465515132800 8,310.00

465565641298

465-565641-298 TID 4 CONTRACT SERVICE ~ GRAINGER Grainger -'Safety Sign 9144139764 06/20/2016 101.40
Total 465565641298: 101.40

501514900000

501-514900-000 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE  LABYRINTH HEALTHCARE GRO  Monttily fee for Advocacy Serv 28858 07/01/2016 174,00
Total 501514900000; 174.00

621575740159

621-575740-159 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ALSCO ALSCOWWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1090165 06/29/2016 72.66
Total 621575740159 72.66

621575740244 .

621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN ~ ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1090165 06/29/2016 13.78
Total 621575740244: 13.78

621575740245

621-575740-245 GROUND IMPROVEMENTS MENARDS Menards Acct 32120265- 9641 06/24/2016 12.49
Total 621575740245: 12.49

621575740249

621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO - ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1090165 06/29/2016 4.7

621-575740-249 LABORATORY. MENARDS Menards Acct 32120265 9402 06/21/2016 34.62
Total 621575740249: 39.33
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621575740359
621-575740-359 SANITARY SEWER REPAIR, ~DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC Diggers Hotline WWTP 160 6 42701 06/30/2016 138.33
Total 621575740359: 138.33
621575740374
621-575740-374 SAFETY CINTAS CORPQORATION CINTAS CORP WWTP 5005459722 06/29/2016 85.94
Total 621575740374: 85.94
622506250000
622-506250-000 MAINTENANCE-SUPPLIES REINEMANS, INC. plumbing parts 104383 06/27/2016 7.66
Total 622506250000: 7.66
622506310000
622-506310-000 CHEMICALS USABIueBook USA BLUEBOOK WATER DEPT #85786 978768 06/14/2016 851.68
Total 622506310000: 851.68
622506510000
622-506510-000 MAINS, WATER BREAKS-SU DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC Diggers Hotline Water 160 6 42701 06/30/2016 138.33
Total 622506510000 138.33
622509030000 .
622-509030-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES ALSCO ALSCO DPW - Water Customer #025570 IMIL1090164 06/29/2016 37.30
Total 622509030000: 37.30
622509210000
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY PITNEY BOWES WATER SUPPLIES 3300658912 06/04/2016 69.57
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY DIGICORP Digicorp - Voice Labor (split) 313802 06/27/2016 48.00
Total 622509210000 117.57
622509350000
622-509350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1090163 06/29/2016 10.93
. 622-500350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE  CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY 4  CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY DPW (split) 5005459721 06/29/2016 32.78
Total 622509350000 4371
623575740242
623-575740-242  REPAIR,MAINTENANCE EQ QT PETROLEUM ON DEMAND Service Labor 59450 06/30/2016 36.00
Total 623675740242: 36.00
623575740265
623-575740-265 Airport Fly-In ZAREK INSURANCE, INC. Airport Fly In Liability 7511 06/30/2016 637.00
Total 623575740265: 637.00
623575740298
623-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICES LANDMARK SERVICES COOPE  Landmark - Airport - Fuel Oil 2636 06/28/2016 438,69
623-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICES BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT  TIME WARNER 2016JULY 07/01/2016 183.00
623-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICES BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT  Pat's Sanitary Service 2016JULY 07/01/2016 35,97
623-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICES BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT  pest control services 2016JULY 07/01/2016 55.00
623-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICES BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT  Outside Service - Cleaning 2016JULY 07/01/2016 12042
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Total 623575740298 833.08
623575740310

623-575740-310 OPERATING SUPPLIES BURLINGTON DEVELOPMENT kitchen/hangar supplies 2016JULY 07/01/2016 119.40

Total 623575740310; ' 119.40

Grand Totals: . 143,713.83

Dated:

Motion for Approval by:

Motion Seconded by:
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 10

DATE: July 19,2016
SUBJECT: Licenses & Permits

SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

Operator’s licenses (aka Bartender’s License) shall be issued to individuals 18 years of age or over who
do not have an arrest or conviction record subject to secs. 111.321, 111.322, and 111.335 and will be
responsible for supervising activities and pouring of Class “A” beer, Class “B” beer, Class “B” .
intoxicating liquor, and “Class A” intoxicating liquor and “Class C” wine on premises during required
hours in absence of the licensee or approved agent of licensed businesses.

Operator’s Licenses:
Bartolone, Stephano
Hocking, Allison
Martinez, Ismael
Miranda-Lopez, Aristeo
Patino, Liliana
Prailes, Mary
Thomas, Tricia
Verkeroff, Daniel
Way, Cody

Wenzel, Kristin

Upcoming Special Events:
Catholic Central Football Beer Brat and Bag Tourney — August 6, 2016

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

Applicants are charged an administrative fee of which a portion funds are applied towards background
checks performed by the police department. Business license fees are calculated on a case by case basis
depending on the type of license applied for (noted above).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the presented licenses.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
None
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COMMOM COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 11

DATE: July 19, 2016
SUBJECT: Appointments and Nominations

SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

The Government Accountability Board's Elections Division encourages all private citizens to vote and to
become involved in the election process. One of the most rewarding ways to do this is to become an
Election Day poll worker (or “Election Inspector” as the position is formally known as). Citizen
involvement is critical to conduct open, accurate and fair elections in Wisconsin.

To be a poll worker, a person must:

e Be a qualified elector of the county in which the municipality is located (i.e., an adult citizen of
the United States who has resided in the election district for 28 consecutive days and is not
otherwise disqualified to vote)

Be able to speak, read, and write fluently in the English language

Have strong clerical skills

Be able to solve problems

Be an effective communicator

NOT be a candidate for any office to be voted on at the polling place at that election.

The following residents would like to volunteer to serve as election workers and meets the necessary
qualifications:

Rene Machuca — 513 Dunford Drive

Kristine Wilhelmi — 232 Bridge St., #442
Susan Stardy — 232 Bridge St., #340

Richard Griebel — 200 Meadowlark Drive, #8

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
None
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 13A

DATE: July 19, 2016

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 4798(17) to consider entering into a Master Agreement for Engineering
Services with Kapur & Associates.

SUBMITTED BY: Carina Walters, City Administrator

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

The attached master agreement between the City and Kapur and Associates, Inc. covers municipal
engineering services and identifies boilerplate contract language regarding services, liabilities,
responsibilities and compensation. By using a master agreement, future task orders with Kapur and
Associates will address specific project parameters without requiring a review of these boilerplate
issues. Task orders could include design services, field engineering services and construction services,
on a project-by-project basis and for a not-to-exceed amount.

Although this contract does not include a specific dollar amount, the hourly rates, included as
Attachment A to the agreement, represent fair and equitable fees and are in line with industry
standards. As specific work is requested by the City, Kapur shall assign the project a task order
number and provide the City with an estimated budget for the proposed work. This gives the council
an opportunity to review and approve actual dollar amounts that relate to each specific project before
any work is assigned.

The City has contracted with Kapur for municipal engineering services since 2000. Kapur also
worked with the City on the Riverfront and overpass projects in 1999. In 2013 the City released a
Request for Proposals for municipal engineering services. Nine proposals were received and
reviewed, with Kapur being retained as the most qualified engineering firm with a three-year master
agreement from 2013-2016.

The term for the attached master agreement begins July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017. The
agreement allows for the option to annually renew until December 31, 2019.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

Although this contract does not include a specific dollar amount, the hourly rates, included as
Attachment A to the agreement, represent fair and equitable fees and are in line with industry
standards. As specific work is requested by the City, Kapur shall assign the project a task order
number and provide the City with an estimated budget for the proposed work. This gives the council
an opportunity to review and approve actual dollar amounts that relate to each specific project before
any work is assigned.

The hourly rates for the proposed contract show an overall increase of 4.5% for the total contract,
broken down to 1.5% increase per year for years 2017-2019. A comparison chart for years 2013
through 2019 is attached for your convenience.
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RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approving the Master Agreement with Kapur & Associates. The term for this
agreement is from July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, with an option to renew annually until
December 31, 2019. The City will annually review the benefits and can terminate this contract not
less than sixty (60) days with written notice.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting and scheduled for final
consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Resolution and Master Agreement
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Resolution No.
Introduced By: Committee of the Whole

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MASTER AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL
ENGINEERNG SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF BURLINGTON WITH
KAPUR AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

WHEREAS, The City of Burlington has a need for a municipal engineering firm to serve as City
Engineer and provide certain services in conjunction with various engineering and construction
projects; and,

WHEREAS, The City of Burlington issued a Request for Proposals asking engineering consulting
firms to submit proposals to serve as City Engineer; and,

WHEREAS, proposals were received by the City, reviewed by staff, and several firms were selected
to give presentations to a panel of staff members; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Burlington staff recommends Kapur & Associates, Inc. be retained by the
City to serve as City Engineer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Burlington, Racine
County, State of Wisconsin, that the City of Burlington shall enter into an agreement with Kapur &
Associates, Inc. for a period beginning July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, with an optional
yearly renewal until December 31, 2019, as stated in the Master Agreement for Engineering
Services, hereto attached as Attachment "A".

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administrator Is hereby authorized and directed to
execute this award on behalf of the City.

Introduced: July 5, 2016
Adopted:

Jeannie Hefty, Mayor

Attest:

Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk
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2013-2016 Contract Proposed Contract

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 _

Project Manager $ 133.00 [ $ 133.00 | $ 133.00 | $ 133.00 | $ 135.00 | $ 137.00 | $ 139.00

Electrical Engineer $133.00 [ $ 133.00 | $ 133.00 | $ 133.00 | $ 135.00 | $ 137.00. S 139.00

Senior Project Manager $ 103.00 | $ 103.00 | $ 107.00 | $ 107.00 | $ 109.00 | $ 110.00 S 112.00

Project Engineer S 8500(|S$ 85.00|S$ 89.00|$ 89.00|$ 90.00|S$ 92.00 S 93.00
Environmental Engineer $ 85.00|5 8500|S$ 89.00|$ 89.00

Surveyor $ 9000 (S 90.00|S$ 90.00{$ 90.00|$ 93.00|$ 95.00 S 95.00
Construction Project Engineer $ 91.00|$ 91.00|$ 91.00|$ 91.00

Staff Engineer Il $ 7800|S 78.00|S$ 78.00|$ 78.00|$ 7800|$ 79.00 S 80.00

Staff Engineer S 60.00[($S 6000|S$ 65.00|S 6500|$ 69.00[$ 70.00(|$ 71.00
Construction Staff Engineer | $ 78.00 | $ 78.00 |$ 78.00|$ 78.00

Senior Technician $ 7500($ 75.00|S$ 75.00|S$ 7500($ 78.00|$ 78.00 S 79.00

Technician S 60.00[$ 60.00|S$ 60.00|S$ 60.00|$ 63.00|$ 65.00 S 67.00

Survey Crew $ 11575 | $ 115.75 | $ 115.75 | $ 115.75 | $ 115.00 | $ 115.00 S 115.00

GIS Technician §$ 79.00|S$ 80.00|S$ 82.00

Environmental Scientist $ 90.00([S$ 92.00($ 93.00
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MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the City of Burlington (Owner) and Kapur & Associates, Inc.

(Engineer), for the following reasons:

1. Owner intends to retain the Engineer to provide certain services in conjunction with various survey and

engineering services and construction projects.

2. In consideration of the promises contained in this Agreement, Owner and Engineer agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 -EFFECTIVE DATES

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1,
2016 through December 31, 2017 and is
renewable through December 31, 2019 upon
annual approvals by the Owner.

ARTICLE 2 — TASK ORDERS

The Engineer will represent the Owner as the City
Engineer. This includes providing professional
engineering services for the Owner on any
projects requested by the Owner involving the
City of Burlington.

Task Orders shall be used to describe the parties’
mutual agreement on the scope of the Services,
schedule, compensation and other particulars as
stated therein. Task Orders shall be in the general
form. Task Orders are binding only after
acceptance and execution by duly authorized
representatives of both parties. Each Task Order
shall govern the parties’ rights and obligations
with respect to each assignment, but all within the
framework of this Agreement. In the event of an
inconsistency between the terms of any Task
Order and the terms of this Agreement, the terms
of this Agreement shall prevail.

ARTICLE 3 - SCOPE OF SERVICES
Engineer shall provide the Services described in
each Task Order and general obligations as
presented in the original engineering services
proposal — see Attachment A.

ARTICLE 4 - SCHEDULE

Engineer shall exercise its reasonable efforts to
perform those Services within the time frame set
forth in each Task Order.

ARTICLE 5 - COMPENSATION
Shall be on a time and materials basis at the rates
listed in Attachment B.

Engineer shall invoice Owner for Services
rendered monthly. Invoices shall be due and
payable upon receipt. Owner shall give prompt
written notice of any disputed amount and shall
pay the remaining amount.

ARTICLE 6 - OWNER’S

RESPONSIBILITIES

Owner shall perform and provide the following in

a timely manner so as not to delay the Services of

Engineer.

(a) Place at Engineer’s disposal all available
information pertinent to the Project,
including previous reports, drawings,
specifications or any other data as may be
reasonably required by Engineer to perform
its Services.

(b) Give prompt written notice to Engineer
whenever Owner becomes aware of any
development that affects the scope or timing
of Engineer’s Services, or any defect in the
Services of Engineer.

(c) Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of
services of any independent consultants
retained by Owner to provide services in
regard to the Project.

ARTICLE 7-STANDARD OF CARE

The same degree of care, skill, and diligence shall
be exercised in the performance of the Services as
is ordinarily possessed and exercised by a
member of the same profession, currently
practicing, under similar circumstances. No other
warranty, express or implied, is included in this
Agreement or in any Task Order, drawing,
specification, report, opinion, or other instrument
of service, in any form or media, produced in
connection with the Services.

ARTICLE 8 — INDEMNIFICATION AND
LIABILITY

General.  Having considered the potential
liabilities that may exist during the performance
of the Services, the relative benefits and risks of
the Project, and the Engineer’s fee for the
Services, and in consideration of the promises
contained in this Agreement, Owner and Engineer
agree to allocate and limit such liabilities in
accordance with this Article.

Indemnification. Engineer agrees to indemnify
and hold the Owner harmless from and against
legal liability for all judgments, losses, damages,
and expenses to the extent such judgements,
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losses, damages, or expenses are caused by the
Engineer’s negligent acts, errors, or omissions
arising out of its performance of the Services. In

the event judgments, losses, damages, or expenses

are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence
of Engineer and Owner, they shall be borne by
each party in proportion to its own negligence.

Limitation of Liability. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, the total aggregate liability of
Engineer and its subconsultants to Owner for all
judgments, losses, damages, and expenses
resulting in any way from the performance of the
Services shall not exceed the total limit of
professional liability coverage as stated herein for
Task Orders completed under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 — INSURANCE

During the term of this Agreement, Engineer shall

maintain the following insurance:

(a) General Liability Insurance, with a combined
single limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence and
$6,000,000 per annual aggregate.

(b) Automobile Liability Insurance, with a
combined single limit of $1,000,000 for each
accident.

(¢) Workers’ Compensation Insurance in
accordance with statutory requirements and
Employer’s Liability Insurance, with a limit
of $1,000,000 for each occurrence.

(d) Professional Liability Insurance, with a limit
of $3,000,000 annual aggregate.

(e) Excess Liability Insurance with a limit of
$6,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000
annual aggregate.

Engineer shall annually, furnish Owner
certificates of insurance which shall include a
provision that such insurance shall not be
canceled without at least thirty days’ written
notice to Owner. Owner shall require all Project
contractors to include Owner and Engineer as
additional insured on their General and
Automobile Liability insurance policies, and to
indemnify both Owner and Engineer, each to the
same extent.

Engineer and Owner waive all rights against each
other and their directors, officers, partners,
commissioners, officials, agents, and employees
for damages covered by property insurance during
and after the completion of the Services. If the
Services result in any construction related to the
Project, a similar provision shall be incorporated
into all construction contracts entered into by

Owner and shall protect Owner and Engineer to
the same extent.

ARTICLE 10 - LIMITATIONS OF
RESPONSIBILITY

Engineer shall not be responsible for (a)
construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences, procedures, or safety precautions and
programs in connection with the Project; (b) the
failure of any contractor, subcontractor, vendor,
or other Project participant, not under contract to
Engineer, to fulfill contractual responsibilities to
Owner or to comply with federal, state, or local
laws, regulations, and codes; or (c) procuring
permits, certificates, and licenses required for any
construction. If any permits are the responsibility
of the contractor, the engineer will so specify in
the construction manual.

ARTICLE 11 — OPINIONS OF COST AND
SCHEDULE

Because Engineer has no control over the cost of
labor, materials, or equipment furnished by
others, or over the resources provided by others to
meet Project Schedules, Engineer’s opinion of
probable costs and of Project Schedules, if any,
shall be made on the basis of experience and
qualifications as a professional engineer.
Engineer does not guarantee that proposals, bids,
or actual Project costs will not vary from
Engineer’s cost estimates or that actual schedules
will not vary from Engineer’s projected
schedules.

ARTICLE 12 — REUSE OF DOCUMENTS
All documents, including, but not limited to,
drawings, specifications, and computer software
prepared by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement
are instruments of service in respect to the Project.
They are not intended or represented to be suitable
for reuse by Owner or others on modifications or
extensions of the Project or any other project.
Any reuse without prior written verification or
adaptation by Engineer for the specific purpose
intended will be at Owner’s sole risk and without
liability or legal exposure to Engineer. Owner
shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and
its subconsultants against all judgments, losses,
damages, injuries, and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
resulting from such reuse. Any verification or
adaption of documents will entitle Engineer to
additional compensation at rates to be agreed
upon by Owner and Engineer.

43 of 149



ARTICLE 13 - OWNERSHIP OF
DOCUMENTS AND INTELLUCTUAL
PROPERTY

Except as otherwise provided herein, engineering
documents, drawings, and specifications prepared
by Engineer and furnished to Owner as part of the
Services shall become the property of Owner;
provided, however, that Engineer shall have the
unrestricted right to their use. Engineer shall
retain its copyright and ownership rights in its
design drawing details, specifications, databases,
computer software, and other proprietary
property. Intellectual property developed,
utilized, or modified in the performance of the
Services shall remain the property of Engineer.

ARTICLE 14 -DELAY IN
PERFORMANCE

Neither Owner nor Engineer shall be considered
in default of this Agreement or any Task Order for
delays in performance caused by circumstances
beyond the reasonable control or the
nonperforming party. For purposes of this
Agreement, such circumstances include, but are
not limited to, abnormal weather conditions;
floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots;
and other civil disturbances; strikes, lockouts,
work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances:
sabotage, judicial restraint, and delay in or
inability to procure permits, licenses, or
authorizations from any local, state, or federal
agency for any of the supplies, materials,
accesses, or services required to be provided by
either Owner or Engineer under this Agreement or
any Task Order. Engineer shall be granted a
reasonable extension of time for any delay in its
performance caused by any such circumstances.

Should such circumstances occur, the
nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable
time of being prevented from performing, give
written notice to the other party describing the
circumstances preventing continued performance
and the efforts being, made to resume
performance.

ARTICLE 15 - CONTRACT
TERMINATION

Either party, the owner or the engineer can
terminate the contract with a 60 days written
notice. The notice must be delivered by a certified
mail.

ARTICLE 16 - NOTICES
Any notice required by this Agreement shall be
made in writing to the address specified below:

Owner:

Carina Walters (262-342-1180)
City Administrator

300 N. Pine Street

Burlington, Wisconsin 53105

Engineer:

Mr. Thomas Foht, P.E.
Kapur & Associates, Inc.
1224 S. Pine Street
Burlington, Wisconsin 53105
(262) 758-6016

Nothing contained in this Article shall be
construed to restrict the transmission of routine
communications between representatives of
Owner and Engineer.

ARTICLE 17 - DISPUTES

In the event of a dispute between Owner and
Engineer arising out of or related to this
Agreement, or any Task Order, the aggrieved
party shall notify the other party of the dispute
within a reasonable time after such dispute arises.
If the parties cannot thereafter resolve the dispute,
each party shall nominate a senior officer of its
management to meet to resolve the dispute by
direct negotiation or mediation.

Should such negotiation or mediation fail to
resolve the dispute, either party may pursue
resolution of the dispute by arbitration in
accordance with the Construction Industry
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration
Association; provided, however, in the event the
parties are unable to reach agreement to arbitrate
under terms reasonably acceptable to both parties,
either party may pursue resolution in any court
having jurisdiction.

During the pendency of any dispute, the parties
shall continue diligently to fulfill their respective
obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE 18 - WAIVER

A waiver by either Owner or Engineer of any
breach of this Agreement shall be in writing.
Such a waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s
rights with respect to any other or further breach.

ARTICLE 19 — SEVERABILITY

The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of
any provision of this Agreement or the occurrence
of any event rendering any portion or provision of
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this Agreement void shall in no way affect the
validity or enforceability of any other portion or
provision of this Agreement or any Task Order.
Any void provision shall be deemed severed from
this Agreement, and the balance of this
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if
it did not contain the particular portion or
provision held to be void. The parties further
agree to amend this Agreement to replace any
stricken provision with a valid provision that
corners as close as possible to the intent of the
stricken provision. The provisions of this Article
shall not prevent this entire Agreement from
being void should a provision which is of the
essence of this Agreement be determined void.

ARTICLE 20 — INTEGRATION

This Agreement, (incorporated by this
reference), and subsequently issued Task Orders
(and their respective attachments, if any),
represents the entire and integrated agreement
between Owner and Engineer. It supersedes all
prior and contemporaneous communications,
representations, and agreements, whether oral or
written, relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Engineer
have executed this Agreement

City of Burlington
(Owner)

By:

Title: Ms. Carina Walters, City Administrator

Date:

ARTICLE 21 — SUCCESSORS AND
ASSIGNS

Owner and Engineer each binds itself and its
successors, executors, administrators, permitted
assigns, legal representatives and, in the case of a
partnership, its partners, to the other party to this
Agreement and to the successors, executors,
administrators,  permitted  assigns, legal
representatives, and partners of such other party
in respect to all provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 22 — ASSIGNMENT

Neither Owner nor Engineer shall assign any
rights or duties under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the other party, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
provided, however, Engineer may assign its rights
to payment without Owner’s consent. Unless
otherwise stated in the written consent to an
assignment, no assignment will release or
discharge the assignor from any obligation under
this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Article
shall prevent Engineer from engaging
independent  consultants, associates, and
subcontractors to assist in the performance of the
Services.

ARTICLE 23 — NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS
The Services provided for in this Agreement are
for the sole use and benefit of Owner and
Engineer. Nothing in the Agreement shall be
construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone
other than Owner and Engineer.

ARTICLE 24 - GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Wisconsin.

Kapur & Associates, Inc.
(Engineer)

By:

Title: Thomas Foht, P.E., City Engineer

Date:
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Attachment A

A. General Municipal Engineering

Services provided include but are not limited to:

Full Service Survey Department
Street Design, Inventory,
Rehab, and Management
Planning

Water Studies/Elevated Tank
and Reservoir Design

Well, Water Treatment and
Pump House Design

Sanitary Sewer Design/Rehab
Clean Water Fund Loan
Traffic Engineering®*
Rural/Urban Highway Design
Storm Sewer Design

Bike Path Planning

CMAQ Grant

Storm Water Management
Plans

Capital Improvement Planning
MS4 Compliance

GIS Data Bases and Interactive
Mapping

Floodplain - Hydraulic Modeling
Watershed Management
Studies

Park and Recreation Facilities
Retaining Walls, Culverts,
Bridges

Manage Grants & Loans

Review CSM/Plats

Traffic Signals*

Create and Implement Public
Assessment Policies

Create and Manage TIF Districts
Agency Coordination (Permits - Local, DNR
and Army COE)

Review Private Development
Submittals

Street Lighting

* Traffic Engineering services are generally coordinated through sub consultant assistance. We will partner with
Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. to assist with all traffic signal design and traffic engineering issues. A separate task
order is prepared for this work.

B. Construction Management

Services provided but are not limited to:

= Quality Audit Review of Design Plans = Notify Residents

=  Construction Administration = Daily Log Reporting

= Construction Inspection = Manage Quantities/Pay Request
®  Contract Administration ®  Materials Testing

= Pre-Construction Meetings = Construction Survey

»  Regular Updates to City Staff = Quality Control

= Regular Contractor Meetings = Scheduling

= Available to Public = Utility Coordination
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Attachment A

C. Natural Resources

Services provided but are not limited to:

Environmental Consulting — wetland delineation / mitigation / enhancement implementation, Ordinary High
Water Mark (OHWM) and Point of Navigability Determinations, stream corridor restoration, lakeshore
improvements, and other natural resource inventories

Construction site erosion and sediment control compliance inspection, management and education

State and Federal Grant application including Runoff Management Grants, Stewardship Grants, Lake
Management and Protection Grants, and Coastal Grants

Site Evaluation for Storm Water Infiltration

Bioengineering and Rain Garden design

Chapter 30, Water Quality Certification and NOI permitting

D. Environmental Engineering

Services provided but are not limited to:

Phase | Environmental Site Assessments = Underground Storage Tank Management
Phase Il Environmental Site Assessments ®=  Solid and Hazardous Waste
Brownfield and SAG Grant Applications Investigation and Remediation

‘Brownfield Remediation and Redevelopment

E. Geographical Information Systems (GIS)

Services provided but are not limited to:

= Asset Management ®  Records Modernization
» Infrastructure Mapping = Custom Software Tools
=  Data Conversion = Software Sales
®*  System Modeling ®*  Web Development
= Digitization =  Document Management
= CAD Integration = Extranet Applications

F. Survey

Services provided but are not limited to:
= Parcel Mapping = Right-of-Way Platting
®  Property Boundary Surveys ®*  lLand Records Research
=  Construction Layout = Legal Descriptions
= Monumentation (Public Land Survey System) = As-Built Surveys
= ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys ®  Zoning Maps/Descriptions
= Subdivision Platting ®  Hydrographic Survey
= Construction Staking = Topographic Surveys
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Attachment A

G. Development Reviews & Design

Services provided but are not limited to:

= Plan Review and Compliance with
Municipal Ordinances

= Design and Construction Field
survey

= Concept Plan

=  Subdivision Layout

= Preliminary Plat

=  Final Plat
= Environmental Permitting and
Approval

»  Plan & Profile

= Grading Plan

= Erosion Control Measures
= Storm Water Management
= Sanitary Sewer Design

= Water Main Design

H. Participate in City Meetings

Street Design

Site Layout and Access

Site Grading and Earthwork
Analysis

Storm Water Quantity and Quality
Modeling
Hydrologic/Hydraulic Drainage
Studies

Storm Drainage Design (Pipes,
Channels, Detention/Retention
Basins, and Infiltration Basins)
Retaining Walls

Recreational Walking and Bike
Trails

Construction Cost Estimating

e Attend City Council meetings, work sessions, Planning and Zoning Commission meetings, weekly staff

meetings and other general City meetings as needed:

»  We will attend City Council meetings AT NO COST TO THE CITY. We are here as part of the community
and will attend meetings as requested or just to stay informed. These meetings engage us in the
community professionally and socially and we look forward to being part of a great community.

e Meet with developers and members of the community to review initial development plans or community

issues.

» Many times, issues are resolved with a phone call or brief meeting; we will gladly take care or these

issues WITHOUT CHARGING THE CITY.

» Once a project develops or a more complex issue involving multiple meetings or design efforts evolves,
our staff will coordinate with City staff to establish a task order or estimated hours under a general

engineering number.

e Attend all necessary meetings for project and development reviews and updates. These meetings will be
estimated under task orders or requested by development teams.

e Our goal is to be consistently considered a branch of the City of Burlington staff — available to you

whenever needed.
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Attachment B

LABOR RATES
KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Rates Rates Rates
Classification
2017 2018 2019
Project $135.00 $137.00 $139.00
Manager
Electrical $135.00 $137.00 $139.00
Engineer
Senior Project $109.00 $110.00 $112.00
Engineer
Surveyor $93.00 $95.00 $95.00
Project $90.00 $92.00 $93.00
Engineer
Environmental
Scientist $90.00 $92.00 $93.00
GIS Technician $79.00 $80.00 $82.00
Staff Engineer $78.00 $79.00 $80.00
11
Staff Engineer $69.00 $70.00 $71.00
Senior $78.00 $78.00 $79.00
Technician
Technician $63.00 $65.00 $67.00
Survey Crew $115.00 $115.00 $115.00
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 15A

DATE: July 19, 2016

SUBJECT: MOTION 16-846 to approve an Airport Hangar Lease with Burlington Aero Group at 1364
Mike Taxiway at the Burlington Municipal Airport.

SUBMITTED BY: Gary Meisner, Airport Manager

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

The Airport Committee met on Thursday, June 23, 2016 and recommends that the City enter into a not-
to-exceed twenty-nine year Airport Hangar Lease agreement with Burlington Aero Group for 1364 Mike
Taxiway. The amount of the lease equals the sum of §.115 per square foot with a total of 3,000 square
feet, equaling $345.00, prorated in the first and last years of the Lease with the first-year payment of $0
due at signing, and payable thereafter in advance of the 1% day of January of each and every consecutive
year of the lease term commencing January 1, 2016.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
An annual payment of $345.00 will be paid to the City each year by January 1 for lease of the hangar.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of this Airport Hangar lease with Burlington Development Group.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:

This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting and scheduled for final
consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Airport Hangar Lease
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AIRPORT LEASE

This lease Agreement, made and entered into this 1st day of July, 2016 by and between the
City of Burlington, State of Wisconsin, a municipal corporation existing through and under the
authority of the laws of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”, and
Burlington Aero Group whose mailing address is 948 Bravo 703 Airport Rd. Burlington, WI
53105 hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”; the Lessor and Lessee for and in consideration of
the keeping by the parties of their respective obligations hereinafter contained, agree as
follows:

ARTICLE 1
PREMISES SUBJECT TO LEASE

The premises subject of this Lease are:

That part of the hangar area of the Burlington Municipal Airport delineated on the official map
of the Burlington Municipal Airport maintained at the office of the City Clerk at City Hall and
identified as 1364 Mike Taxiway. This Lease does not include use of City Water.

ARTICLE 2
TERM

The term of this Lease shall be from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2045 [not to exceed 29 years]
both dates inclusive. This Lease shall be automatically renewed for successive ten-year
periods thereafter upon mutually agreed-upon terms and approval of the renewal shall not be
unreasonably withheld by the Lessor. This Lease is not transferable, See Article 5, Section G.

ARTICLE 3
RENT

The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rent for the Leased Premises the sum of $ 0.115 per
square foot for the leased area, which contains a total of 3000 square feet, for a total amount of
$ 345.00, prorated in the first and last years of the Lease with the first-year payment of § 0
due at signing, and payable thereafter in advance of the 1st day of January of each and every
consecutive year of the lease term commencing on January 1, 2017 subject to the provisions
set forth in Article 5, Section A.

ARTICLE 4

Lessee agrees that rent charged is based on intended:
Personal Use, defined as the use of the Leased Premises in a manner which
does not meet the definition of Commercial Use; or
XX Commercial Use, defined as the operation of an airport-related business, which is
open to the public, on or in the Leased Premises.

Lessee may change the intended use to that of another type, to be effective the following
January 1%, if Lessee petitions the Airport Committee in writing no later than December 10
and the Committee approves the change no later than its December meeting. See also Article
5, Section F.
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ARTICLE 5
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

A. RENTAL INCREASES. The Lessor may adjust the rental charge rate in the year
2010 and every five years thereafter, as determined by the Airport Committee in the same
proportion as the cumulative change in the Consumer Price Index for all urban customers
(CPI-U) over the same time period. In the event of a rate change, Lessor shall give Lessee
sixty (60) days advance notice.

B. IMPROVEMENTS. Lessee agrees to erect on the Leased Premises a hangar,
if not already constructed, and shall comply with all ordinances, building codes, and zoning
restrictions for said airport, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Airport Committee
relative thereto.

C. USE OF FACILITIES. Lessee shall have the right to the non-exclusive use in
common with others of the airport parking areas, appurtenances and improvements thereon;
the right to install, operate, maintain and store, subject to approval of the Airport Committee,
all equipment necessary for the safe hangaring of the Lessee’s planes, specifically excluding
any aviation gasoline or fuel; the right of ingress to or egress from the demised premises,
which shall extend to Lessee’s employees, guests and patrons; the right, in common with
others so to do, to use common areas of the airport including runways, taxiways, aprons,
roadways, and other conveniences for the take-off, flying and landing of aircraft of Lessee.
Lessee shall not store any equipment or other material outside of its hangar without the written
consent of the Airport Committee.

D. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Lessee agrees to observe and obey during the term
of this Lease all laws and ordinances, and the rules and regulations promulgated and enforced
by the Airport Committee of the City of Burlington, and other proper authority having
jurisdiction over the conduct of the operations of the airport including city, county, state and
federal agencies or departments.

E. INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the Airport Committee
and the City of Burlington free and harmless from loss from each and every claim and
demand, of whatever nature, made on the behalf of or by any person or persons for any act or
omission on the part of the Lessee, or Lessee’s agents, employees, guests and patrons and from
all loss or damage by reason of such acts or omissions.

F. SUBLEASE-RENTAL OF PREMISES. Lessee may sublet portions of the hangar
constructed on the Leased Premises for the same purposes as stated in this Lease, subject to
this policy of the Airport Committee relative to rental rates: It is agreed and understood by
Lessee that the rate agreed to in this Lease is for (choose one) _ personal use

XX commercial use. Under this agreement it is understood by the parties that if
property is sublet, the appropriate rate will be applied to this Lease from the following January
1. Inthe event that Lessee fails to disclose a sublease, he agrees to pay the City the amount of
the increased rental for the period of any failure to so disclose.

In the event Lessee does enter into a sublease, Lessee shall require any subtenant to abide with
all of the conditions of this lease agreement including the requirement that the subtenant shall
hold the Airport Committee and the City of Burlington free an harmless from any loss for each
and every claim or demand, of whatever nature, made by the subtenant against the Les¥eg’ '4°



herein or on behalf of or by any other person or persons for any act or omission on the part of
the Lessee or subtenant or their agents or employees, or for any loss or damage by reason of
such acts or omissions by the Lessee or its subtenant.

G. OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS. Lessee shall retain title to all building or
buildings constructed on said premises and such title shall be transferable subject to the
Common Council’s approval of a new Lease by and between the City of Burlington and the
proposed transferee.

H. MAINTENANCE. Lessee shall maintain the structure(s) it occupies and the
surrounding land and premises in good order and shall make such repairs as are necessary. In
the event of fire or any other casualty, the owner of any such structure so affected shall either
repair or replace the building and restore the leased land to its original condition or remove the
damaged building and restore the leased area to its original condition; such action must be
accomplished within 120 days of the date the damage occurred. In the event that Lessee
determines not to rebuild and in fact restores the Leased area to its original condition, this
Lease may be terminated pursuant to Article 5, Section U(3).

In the event Lessee fails to comply with this provision, Lessor may, after thirty (30) days
notice to the Lessee, enter onto the premises for the purpose of completing said maintenance,
making such repairs as are necessary, or restoring the leased land to its original condition. In
the event Lessor does so, Lessor shall charge the Lessee the cost of any such maintenance or
repairs. If Lessee refuses to pay any such charge within thirty (30) days, Lessor shall have the
right to terminate this lease. See Article 5, Section U. In the event the Lessor removes
Lessee’s hangar under this section, Lessor shall proceed to enforce its lien rights pursuant to
Article 5, Section U.

I. ACCESS FOR INSPECTION. Lessor reserves the right to enter upon the premises
at any reasonable time for the purpose of making any inspection it may deem expedient to the
proper enforcement of any of the covenants or conditions of this agreement.

J. FIRE AND POLICE PROTECTION. Lessor agrees to extend to Lessee the same
fire and police protection extended to the other tenants of facilities in the airport. Lessee shall
arrange for annual inspection of the hangar sites and buildings by the local fire inspector, or at
such other frequency as required by state statute.

K. TAXES. Lessee shall pay all taxes or assessments that are levied against personal
property of the Lessee and/or the buildings which are erected on lands leased exclusively to
Lessee. In the event that said personal property taxes are not paid 30 days after becoming
due, Lessee shall be considered in default of this Lease. See Article 5, Section M.

L. ADVERTISING. Lessee agrees that no sign or advertising matter may be erected
without the written consent of the Lessor.

M. DEFAULT. If Lessee fails to pay rent when due, or commits waste or breaches any
other covenant or condition of this Lease, Lessor shall give Lessee notice to pay the rent,
repair the waste or comply with the Lease on or before a date at least 30 days after the giving
of the notice, and that failure to comply will result in the termination of the tenancy. If the
tenancy is so terminated, Lessor shall proceed under Article 5, Section U.

N. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT. Lessor reserves the right to further develop or
improve the landing area of the airport as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or view oftkE'#°



Lessee and without interference or hindrance from Lessee. The Lessor reserves the right, but
shall not be obligated to the Lessee, to maintain and keep in repair the landing area of the
airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; together with the right to direct and
control all activities of the Lessee in this regard.

Lessor reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial
approaches to the airport against construction, together with the right to prevent the Lessee
from erecting, or permit to be erected, any building or other structure on the airport which, in
the opinion of the Lessor, would limit the usefulness of the airport or constitute a hazard to
aircraft.

0. RESTRICTIONS. Lessor will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which
would operate to prevent the Lessee from performing any services on its aircraft with its own
employees that it may choose to perform. These services shall include, but are not limited to,
maintenance and repair. Lessee may not provide any type of maintenance or service to
aircraft not owned by Lessee upon said Leased Premises .

P. PREEMPTION OF LEASE. During the time of war or national emergency, Lessor
shall have the right to lease the landing area, or any part thereof, to the United States
Government for military or naval use; and if any such lease is executed, the provisions of this
instrument insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of the lease to the Government
shall be suspended.

All leases shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between
the Lessor and the United States relative to the operation or maintenance of the airport, the
execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of
federal funds for the development of the airport.

Q. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The Lessee, for himself or successors in interest and
assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenants and agree that: (1) no
person, on the grounds of race, color, religion, or national origin, shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subject to discrimination in the use of the
leased facilities of the City of Burlington Municipal Airport; (2) in the construction and
maintenance of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services
thereon or therein, no person on the grounds of race, color, religion or national origin shall be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subject to discrimination;
(3) the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance, as applicable, with all other requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Sub-Title A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-Discrimination, in federally
assisted programs of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said regulation may be
amended. ’

R. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee represents and
warrants that its use of the Premises herein will not generate any Hazardous Substance, and it
will not store or dispose on the Premises nor transport to or over the Premises any Hazardous
Material or Substance in violation of any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation or
rule then presently in effect. Lessee further agrees to hold the City of Burlington harmless
from and indemnify the City of Burlington against any release of such Hazardous Substance
and any damage, loss, or expense or liability resulting from such release, including all
attorney’s fees, costs and penalties incurred as a result thereof which was caused by Lessee or
any of its employees or agents. “Hazardous Substance” shall be interpreted broadly to mean
any substance or material defined as a radioactive substance, or other similar term by gy 149



federal, state or local environmental law, regulation or rule presently in effect or promulgated
in the future, as such laws, regulations or rules may be amended from time to time, and it shall
be interpreted to include, but shall not be limited to, any substance which after release into the
environment will or may reasonably be anticipated to cause sickness, death or disease.

The City of Burlington represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any Hazardous
Substance existing on the Owned Premises in violation of any applicable federal, state or local
law, regulation or rule. The City of Burlington further agrees to hold Lessee harmless from
and indemnify Lessee against any damage, loss, or expense or liability resulting from the
existence on the Owned Premises of any such Hazardous Substance, including all attorneys’
fees, costs and penalties incurred as a result thereof, unless caused by Lessee, any other
Lessee, or any of their employees, agents, guests or patrons.

S. INSURANCE. The Lessee agrees that it will deposit with the Lessor a policy of
comprehensive liability insurance. The policy shall be issued by a company licensed to do
business in Wisconsin and shall insure the Lessee against loss from liability to the amount of
$1,000,000 for each occurrence and in the amount of $2,000,000 aggregate, which shall name
the Lessor as an additional insured. The cancellation or other termination of any insurance
policy issued in compliance with this section shall automatically terminate the Lease unless
another policy has been filed and approved pursuant to this section and shall be in effect at the
time of such cancellation or termination.

T. SNOW REMOVAL POLICY. The Lessor’s and the Lessee’s responsibilities for
snow removal are defined under the City of Burlington’s Snow Removal Policy. This Policy
was adopted by a resolution of the Burlington Common Council. This policy may be
amended or updated at any time without notification. Each party agrees to abide by the then -
current terms of said Policy.

U. TERMINATION. (1) By Default. In the event that Lessee defaults under Article 5,
Sections H., M., or S., or by other operation of law, the tenancy shall be terminated, Lessor
shall have the right to re-enter or repossess the leased property, either by force, summary
proceedings, surrender, or otherwise, and dispossess and remove there from Lessee, and its
effects, without being liable to any prosecution therefore, and Lessee shall surrender
possession of the premises, and Lessee hereby expressly waives the service of notice of
intention to re-enter or of instituting legal proceedings to that end.

(2) By Expiration. In the event that this Lease is terminated pursuant to Article 2 hereof,
Lessee shall either: a. Sell its hangar to a third party, and the buyer thereof shall enter into a
new Lease with the City of Burlington, which sale and transfer shall not be effective until and
unless approved by the Common Council; or b. By or before the last date of the term of the
Lease, remove its hangar and all equipment and restore the premises to the condition it was in
prior to the construction of the hangar.

(3) By Mutual Consent. This Lease may be terminated by the mutual consent of the parties,
upon the entry into a new Lease or such other terms and conditions agreed to as evidenced by
the signatures of the parties hereto.

(4) Lien Rights. Lessor shall, in any event, have liens on Lessee’s hangar and other
personality, including Lessee’s aircraft, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 704.05(5) and 779.43(3), and
shall enforce such liens as provided by law, but shall have, in addition to those rights provided
by Wis. Stat. § 704.05(5)(a) 1. and 2., the right to demand payment of past due rent and/or
other charges due from Lessee under the terms of this Lease for release of the lien, or 2ppiy*he



proceeds of sale to past due rent and/or other charges due from Lessee under the terms of the
Lease.

V. GENERAL PROVISIONS.  The following provisions shall apply to this Agreement:

(1) Rights and liabilities of the parties shall bind and inure to the benefit of their personal
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns.

(2) This agreement constitutes the entire agreement pertaining to the subject matter and
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements of the parties in connection therewith.

(3) In construing this Lease, feminine or neuter pronouns may be substituted for those
masculine in form and vice versa and plural terms may be substituted for singular and singular
for plural in any place in which the context so requires.

(4) The captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only and do not form part of

this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals they day and
year first herein written.

Approved by the Airport Committee on: é /? 3/4 6

AIRPORT MANAGER: LESSEE:

B
Signature
6“‘»* g Mf”ﬁ”f’{

Print (or type) name Print (or typg/name

Signature

Approved by Common Council on:

CITY OF BURLINGTON

Flesipeer b~
Signature Title
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 15B

DATE: July 19, 2016

SUBJECT: MOTION 16-847 to approve an Airport Hangar Lease with MJJ Holding at 711 Airport
Road at the Burlington Municipal Airport.

SUBMITTED BY: Gary Meisner, Airport Manager

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

The Airport Committee met on Thursday, June 23, 2016 and recommends that the City enter into a not-
to-exceed twenty-nine year Airport Hangar Lease agreement with MJJ Holding for 711 Airport Road.
The amount of the lease equals the sum of $.115 per square foot with a total of 5,880 square feet, equaling
$676.20, prorated in the first and last years of the Lease with the first-year payment of $0 due at signing,
and payable thereafter in advance of the 1% day of January of each and every consecutive year of the lease
term commencing January 1, 2016.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
An annual payment of $676.20 will be paid to the City each year by January 1 for lease of the hangar.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of this Airport Hangar lease with Burlington Development Group.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:

This item was discussed at the July 5, 2016 Committee of the Whole meeting and scheduled for final
consideration at the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
Airport Hangar Lease
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AIRPORT LEASE

This lease Agreement, made and entered into this 1st day of July, 2016 by and between the
City of Burlington, State of Wisconsin, a municipal corporation existing through and under the
authority of the laws of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”, and MJJ
Holding whose mailing address is 709 Airport Rd. Burlington, WI 53105 hereinafter referred
to as “Lessee”; the Lessor and Lessee for and in consideration of the keeping by the parties of
their respective obligations hereinafter contained, agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
PREMISES SUBJECT TO LEASE

The premises subject of this Lease are:
That part of the hangar area of the Burlington Municipal Airport delineated on the official map

of the Burlington Municipal Airport maintained at the office of the City Clerk at City Hall and
identified as 711 Airport Rd. Taxiway. This Lease does not include use of City Water.

ARTICLE 2
TERM

The term of this Lease shall be from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2045 [not to exceed 29 years]
both dates inclusive. This Lease shall be automatically renewed for successive ten-year
periods thereafter upon mutually agreed-upon terms and approval of the renewal shall not be
unreasonably withheld by the Lessor. This Lease is not transferable, See Article 5, Section G.

ARTICLE 3
RENT

The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rent for the Leased Premises the sum of $ 0.115 per
square foot for the leased area, which contains a total of 5880 square feet, for a total amount of
$ 676.20, prorated in the first and last years of the Lease with the first-year payment of $ 0
due at signing, and payable thereafter in advance of the 1st day of January of each and every
consecutive year of the lease term commencing on January 1, 2017 subject to the provisions
set forth in Article 5, Section A.

ARTICLE 4

Lessee agrees that rent charged is based on intended:
Personal Use, defined as the use of the Leased Premises in a manner which
does not meet the definition of Commercial Use; or
XX Commercial Use, defined as the operation of an airport-related business, which is
open to the public, on or in the Leased Premises.

Lessee may change the intended use to that of another type, to be effective the following
January 1%, if Lessee petitions the Airport Committee in writing no later than December 10%
and the Committee approves the change no later than its December meeting. See also Article
5, Section F.
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ARTICLE 5
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

A. RENTAL INCREASES. The Lessor may adjust the rental charge rate in the year
2010 and every five years thereafter, as determined by the Airport Committee in the same
proportion as the cumulative change in the Consumer Price Index for all urban customers
(CPI-U) over the same time period. In the event of a rate change, Lessor shall give Lessee
sixty (60) days advance notice.

B. IMPROVEMENTS. Lessee agrees to erect on the Leased Premises a hangar,
if not already constructed, and shall comply with all ordinances, building codes, and zoning
restrictions for said airport, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Airport Committee
relative thereto.

C. USE OF FACILITIES. Lessee shall have the right to the non-exclusive use in
common with others of the airport parking areas, appurtenances and improvements thereon;
the right to install, operate, maintain and store, subject to approval of the Airport Committee,
all equipment necessary for the safe hangaring of the Lessee’s planes, specifically excluding
any aviation gasoline or fuel; the right of ingress to or egress from the demised premises,
which shall extend to Lessee’s employees, guests and patrons; the right, in common with
others so to do, to use common areas of the airport including runways, taxiways, aprons,
roadways, and other conveniences for the take-off, flying and landing of aircraft of Lessee.
Lessee shall not store any equipment or other material outside of its hangar without the written
consent of the Airport Committee.

D. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Lessee agrees to observe and obey during the term
of this Lease all laws and ordinances, and the rules and regulations promulgated and enforced
by the Airport Committee of the City of Burlington, and other proper authority having
jurisdiction over the conduct of the operations of the airport including city, county, state and
federal agencies or departments.

E. INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the Airport Committee
and the City of Burlington free and harmless from loss from each and every claim and
demand, of whatever nature, made on the behalf of or by any person or persons for any act or
omission on the part of the Lessee, or Lessee’s agents, employees, guests and patrons and from
all loss or damage by reason of such acts or omissions.

F. SUBLEASE-RENTAL OF PREMISES. Lessee may sublet portions of the hangar
constructed on the Leased Premises for the same purposes as stated in this Lease, subject to
this policy of the Airport Committee relative to rental rates: It is agreed and understood by
Lessee that the rate agreed to in this Lease is for (choose one) __ personal use

XX commercial use. Under this agreement it is understood by the parties that if
property is sublet, the appropriate rate will be applied to this Lease from the following January
1. In the event that Lessee fails to disclose a sublease, he agrees to pay the City the amount of
the increased rental for the period of any failure to so disclose.

In the event Lessee does enter into a sublease, Lessee shall require any subtenant to abide with
all of the conditions of this lease agreement including the requirement that the subtenant shall
hold the Airport Committee and the City of Burlington free an harmless from any loss for each
and every claim or demand, of whatever nature, made by the subtenant against the Lessee
herein or on behalf of or by any other person or persons for any act or omission on the past of



the Lessee or subtenant or their agents or employees, or for any loss or damage by reason of
such acts or omissions by the Lessee or its subtenant.

G. OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS. Lessee shall retain title to all building or
buildings constructed on said premises and such title shall be transferable subject to the
Common Council’s approval of a new Lease by and between the City of Burlington and the
proposed transferee.

H. MAINTENANCE. Lessee shall maintain the structure(s) it occupies and the
surrounding land and premises in good order and shall make such repairs as are necessary. In
the event of fire or any other casualty, the owner of any such structure so affected shall either
repair or replace the building and restore the leased land to its original condition or remove the
damaged building and restore the leased area to its original condition; such action must be
accomplished within 120 days of the date the damage occurred. In the event that Lessee
determines not to rebuild and in fact restores the Leased area to its original condition, this
Lease may be terminated pursuant to Article 5, Section U(3).

In the event Lessee fails to comply with this provision, Lessor may, after thirty (30) days
notice to the Lessee, enter onto the premises for the purpose of completing said maintenance,
making such repairs as are necessary, or restoring the leased land to its original condition. In
the event Lessor does so, Lessor shall charge the Lessee the cost of any such maintenance or
repairs. If Lessee refuses to pay any such charge within thirty (30) days, Lessor shall have the
right to terminate this lease. See Article 5, Section U. In the event the Lessor removes
Lessee’s hangar under this section, Lessor shall proceed to enforce its lien rights pursuant to
Article 5, Section U.

L ACCESS FOR INSPECTION. Lessor reserves the right to enter upon the premises
at any reasonable time for the purpose of making any inspection it may deem expedient to the
proper enforcement of any of the covenants or conditions of this agreement.

J. FIRE AND POLICE PROTECTION. Lessor agrees to extend to Lessee the same
fire and police protection extended to the other tenants of facilities in the airport. Lessee shall
arrange for annual inspection of the hangar sites and buildings by the local fire inspector, or at
such other frequency as required by state statute.

K. TAXES. Lessee shall pay all taxes or assessments that are levied against personal
property of the Lessee and/or the buildings which are erected on lands leased exclusively to
Lessee. In the event that said personal property taxes are not paid 30 days after becoming
due, Lessee shall be considered in default of this Lease. See Article 5, Section M.

L. ADVERTISING. Lessee agrees that no sign or advertising matter may be erected
without the written consent of the Lessor.

M. DEFAULT. If Lessee fails to pay rent when due, or commits waste or breaches any
other covenant or condition of this Lease, Lessor shall give Lessee notice to pay the rent,
repair the waste or comply with the Lease on or before a date at least 30 days after the giving
of the notice, and that failure to comply will result in the termination of the tenancy. If the
tenancy is so terminated, Lessor shall proceed under Article 5, Section U.

N. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT. Lessor reserves the right to further develop or
improve the landing area of the airport as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or view of the
Lessee and without interference or hindrance from Lessee. The Lessor reserves the right! it



shall not be obligated to the Lessee, to maintain and keep in repair the landing area of the
airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; together with the right to direct and
control all activities of the Lessee in this regard.

Lessor reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial
approaches to the airport against construction, together with the right to prevent the Lessee
from erecting, or permit to be erected, any building or other structure on the airport which, in
the opinion of the Lessor, would limit the usefulness of the airport or constitute a hazard to
aircraft.

0. RESTRICTIONS. Lessor will not exercise or grant any right or privilege which
would operate to prevent the Lessee from performing any services on its aircraft with its own
employees that it may choose to perform. These services shall include, but are not limited to,
maintenance and repair. Lessee may not provide any type of maintenance or service to
aircraft not owned by Lessee upon said Leased Premises .

P. PREEMPTION OF LEASE. During the time of war or national emergency, Lessor
shall have the right to lease the landing area, or any part thereof, to the United States
Government for military or naval use; and if any such lease is executed, the provisions of this
instrument insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of the lease to the Government
shall be suspended.

All leases shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between
the Lessor and the United States relative to the operation or maintenance of the airport, the
execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of
federal funds for the development of the airport.

Q. NON-DISCRIMINATION. The Lessee, for himself or successors in interest and
assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenants and agree that: (1) no
person, on the grounds of race, color, religion, or national origin, shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subject to discrimination in the use of the
leased facilities of the City of Burlington Municipal Airport; (2) in the construction and
maintenance of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services
thereon or therein, no person on the grounds of race, color, religion or national origin shall be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subject to discrimination;
(3) the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance, as applicable, with all other requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Sub-Title A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-Discrimination, in federally
assisted programs of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said regulation may be
amended.

R. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee represents and
warrants that its use of the Premises herein will not generate any Hazardous Substance, and it
will not store or dispose on the Premises nor transport to or over the Premises any Hazardous
Material or Substance in violation of any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation or
rule then presently in effect. Lessee further agrees to hold the City of Burlington harmless
from and indemnify the City of Burlington against any release of such Hazardous Substance
and any damage, loss, or expense or liability resulting from such release, including all
attorney’s fees, costs and penalties incurred as a result thereof which was caused by Lessee or
any of its employees or agents. “Hazardous Substance” shall be interpreted broadly to mean
any substance or material defined as a radioactive substance, or other similar term by any
federal, state or local environmental law, regulation or rule presently in effect or promylgated



in the future, as such laws, regulations or rules may be amended from time to time, and it shall
be interpreted to include, but shall not be limited to, any substance which after release into the
environment will or may reasonably be anticipated to cause sickness, death or disease.

The City of Burlington represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any Hazardous
Substance existing on the Owned Premises in violation of any applicable federal, state or local
law, regulation or rule. The City of Burlington further agrees to hold Lessee harmless from
and indemnify Lessee against any damage, loss, or expense or liability resulting from the
existence on the Owned Premises of any such Hazardous Substance, including all attorneys’
fees, costs and penalties incurred as a result thereof, unless caused by Lessee, any other
Lessee, or any of their employees, agents, guests or patrons.

S. INSURANCE. The Lessee agrees that it will deposit with the Lessor a policy of
comprehensive liability insurance. The policy shall be issued by a company licensed to do
business in Wisconsin and shall insure the Lessee against loss from liability to the amount of
$1,000,000 for each occurrence and in the amount of $2,000,000 aggregate, which shall name
the Lessor as an additional insured. The cancellation or other termination of any insurance
policy issued in compliance with this section shall automatically terminate the Lease unless
another policy has been filed and approved pursuant to this section and shall be in effect at the
time of such cancellation or termination.

T. SNOW REMOVAL POLICY. The Lessor’s and the Lessee’s responsibilities for
snow removal are defined under the City of Burlington’s Snow Removal Policy. This Policy
was adopted by a resolution of the Burlington Common Council. This policy may be
amended or updated at any time without notification. Each party agrees to abide by the then -
current terms of said Policy.

U. TERMINATION. (1) By Default. In the event that Lessee defaults under Article 5,
Sections H., M., or S., or by other operation of law, the tenancy shall be terminated, Lessor
shall have the right to re-enter or repossess the leased property, either by force, summary
proceedings, surrender, or otherwise, and dispossess and remove there from Lessee, and its
effects, without being liable to any prosecution therefore, and Lessee shall surrender
possession of the premises, and Lessee hereby expressly waives the service of notice of
intention to re-enter or of instituting legal proceedings to that end.

(2) By Expiration. In the event that this Lease is terminated pursuant to Article 2 hereof,
Lessee shall either: a. Sell its hangar to a third party, and the buyer thereof shall enter into a
new Lease with the City of Burlington, which sale and transfer shall not be effective until and
unless approved by the Common Council; or b. By or before the last date of the term of the
Lease, remove its hangar and all equipment and restore the premises to the condition it was in
prior to the construction of the hangar. '

(3) By Mutual Consent. This Lease may be terminated by the mutual consent of the parties,
upon the entry into a new Lease or such other terms and conditions agreed to as evidenced by
the signatures of the parties hereto.

(4) Lien Rights. Lessor shall, in any event, have liens on Lessee’s hangar and other
personality, including Lessee’s aircraft, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 704.05(5) and 779.43(3), and
shall enforce such liens as provided by law, but shall have, in addition to those rights provided
by Wis. Stat. § 704.05(5)(a) 1. and 2., the right to demand payment of past due rent and/or

other charges due from Lessee under the terms of this Lease for release of the lien, or apply the
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proceeds of sale to past due rent and/or other charges due from Lessee under the terms of the
Lease.

V. GENERAL PROVISIONS.  The following provisions shall apply to this Agreement:

(1) Rights and liabilities of the parties shall bind and inure to the benefit of their personal
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns.

(2) This agreement constitutes the entire agreement pertaining to the subject matter and
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements of the parties in connection therewith.

(3) In construing this Lease, feminine or neuter pronouns may be substituted for those
masculine in form and vice versa and plural terms may be substituted for singular and singular
for plural in any place in which the context so requires.

(4) The captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only and do not form part of

this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals they day and
year first herein written.

Approved by the Airport Committee on: é Zlg )/ A

AIRPORT MANAGER: LESSEE:

A 5
Signature Signature
_gnw Micsoer g/,, %ﬂ/% i

Print (or fype) name PAnt (or type) name

Approved by Common Council on:

CITY OF BURLINGTON

Y londy

Signature Title
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COMMON COUNCIL ITEM NUMBER: 15C

DATE: July 19, 2016

SUBJECT: MOTION 16-845 to consider approving the 2015 Annual Audit

SUBMITTED BY: Carina Walters, City Administrator; Steve DeQuaker, City Budget Officer/Treasurer

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

Since 1985, Patrick Romenesko, SC has been retained by the City to complete annual audits, Tax
Increment Finance District Audits and Summaries and other financial reporting as required by the City of
Burlington. This accounting firm files required Form C and PSC financial forms to the State. All funds of
the City are audited as well as the Utilities, Airport and Housing Unit. Mr. Romenesko has completed the
audit of the 2015 financials as required by state law. A copy of the report is attached. Pat Romenesko will
also be presenting the Audit to the Committee of the Whole this evening.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

Due to growth in new construction, and in particular the Aurora Surgery Center, Fox River Crossing
Phase 2, AMS, new housing and a few other Retail, Industrial and Residential upswings, the overall Fund
Balance showed an increase over 2014. While no formal policy is in place regarding fund balance, past
practice has been to retain 25% of total General Fund Expenditures as a fund balance. The Fund Balance
at the end of 2015 was $2,063,448 up $73, 866 from budget and up $397,603 from 2014. Fund Balance
was at 29.01% of Expenditures (Audit page 10).

Water and Sewer Utilities continue to operate at low cash balance reserves. Ongoing rate increases as
outlined in 2011 with the full rate case increase and annual simplified rate case submittals for water and
loss of Industrial contracts in 2012 have been hard pressed to keep up with conservation efforts by both
residential and industrial users. Airport continues to operate in the black with sufficient cash reserves.
Water Utility shows a Cash at year-end of $280,261; Sewer at $210,914 and Airport at $321,598. (Audit
page 15).

There are a few TIF District, non-major and infrastructure funds still needing resolution of negative
balances. The Infrastructure fund is showing a negative balance of $1,062,607. This fund is the residual
from prior expenditures that were over budget. The ER TIF District is at a negative balance of
$1,832,222. Facade Grant is at a negative $8,955 and Storm Water is at a negative $10,703. The TIF
District will be resolved by TID Increment Share from TIF District 3 in 2016 and at the close of both TIF
districts beginning in 2017. The Infrastructure, Fagade Grant and Storm Water funds will be addressed in
the Financial Plan coming later this year. Storm Water will continue to be an issue going forward and will
need additional funding with a Storm Water Utility to pay for expenses very likely needing to be formed
(Audit page 28).

TIF 5 shows no increment value in 2015. Values are based on a January 1 date of valuation. A partial
Increment is expected in 2016 and full increment in 2017. $4.5 million in expenses are to be reimbursed
by Aurora per the developer agreement.
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The City’s 2015 Equalized value was $826,054,600 and the General Fund Debt, Principal Only at year
end 2015 was $25,725. Wisconsin Statutes require maximum General Fund debt to be no more than 5%
of Equalized Value. The maximum amount of General Fund Debt is limited to $41,302,730 leaving a
margin of indebtedness, or able to borrow $15,577,730 (Audit page 39).

The City continues in its Assessor contract and Full Revaluation. 2016 will mark year 3 of 4 year.
Equalized values have been declining as of late as the full re-val has made some market adjustments.
However, larger growth in 2016 and 2017 is expected with Aurora, Echo Lake Foods, AMS and Fox
Crossing Phase 2 coming on line. The close of TIF District 3 and ER TIF District 1 in 2017 will also
bring needed boost to the General Fund. Implementation of the upcoming financial plan, monitoring of
Storm Water and infrastructure along with development of solid financial policy will continue to improve
the City’s financial position

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends adoption of the Audit Resolution as presented by Patrick Romenesko, SC

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item will appear for final consideration on the July 19, 2016 Common Council meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:
2015 Annual Audit
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/

W

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the City Council
City of Burlington
Racine and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Burlington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Burlington’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these ﬁnan01al statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. Iconducted my
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Burlington as of December 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, the cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 5C, the city implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and Statement No. 71, Pension

Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB

Statement No. 68. My opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules
relating to pensions on page 52 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to the my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my
audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide me w1th sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. My opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Burlington’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental
information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the of the basic financial statements.

This supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Long-Term Debt Schedules as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

ot vo Qe l, S

PATRICK W. ROMENESKO, S.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Lake Geneva, Wisconsin
June 28, 2016
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2015

Assets
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
2015 tax levy
Delinquent personal property tax (net of
allowance for uncollectible accounts)
Accounts and other
Special assessments
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted assets - cash and investments
Notes receivable
Net pension asset
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land and land rights
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements and other structures
Machinery and equipment
~ Infrastructure
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pension

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Deposits held

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences, due beyond one year
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year
Bonds and notes payable, due beyond one year
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for pension benefits
Unrestricted
Total net position

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental ~ Business-type Housing
Activities Activities Total Authority
$ 2,419,994 § 1,214,775 3,634,769  § 48,679
10,044,913 - 10,044,913 -
462 - 462 -
85,325 1,282,184 1,367,509 33,268
26,515 143,961 170,476 -
914,478 (914,478) - -
- 44,354 44,354 -
13,612 - 13,612 11,192
1,664,600 415,917 2,080,517 274,380
2,377,924 - 2,377,924 -
786,404 149,344 935,748 8,875
20,147,482 1,164,332 21,311,814 87,236
9,896,104 30,839,795 40,735,899 3,165,294
3,625,016 2,054,267 5,679,283 652,559
7,342,288 10,641,355 17,983,643 137,904
43,609,965 34,686,676 78,296,641 -
(29,650,332) (32,207,106) (61,857,438) (1,755,849)
73,304,750 49,515,376 122,820,126 2,663,538
806,199 153,075 959,274 13,754
74,110,949 49,668,451 123,779,400 2,677,292
852,685 179,248 1,031,933 62,214
132,390 6,455 138,845 -
16,457 3,000 19,457 33,506
- 59,776 59,776 -
309,920 71,784 381,704 -
3,658,324 988,541 4,646,365 29,568
22,041,590 14,603,527 36,645,117 2,202,600
27,011,366 15,912,331 42,923,697 2,327,888
10,536,635 - 10,536,635 -
29,270,609 32,006,531 61,277,140 154,976
1,664,600 415,917 2,080,517 140,712
1,592,603 302,419 1,895,022 22,629
4,035,136 1,031,253 5,066,389 31,087
$ 36,562,948 $ 33,756,120 70,319,068 § 349,404

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

3
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A two-page statement of
activities follows.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Functions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Airport
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component unit:
Housing authority

Program Revenues

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 953,199  $ 42,148 $ - $ 53,567

4,313,083 439,833 55,149 -
6,168,931 18,816 639,738 117,268

82,449 - - -
1,584,273 44,616 300,770 747

408,786 37,288 205,000 -

691,941 - - -
14,202,662 582,701 1,200,657 171,582
1,742,435 2,245,809 - 1,081,005
3,393,840 2,945,315 - 1,892,191

805,337 848,082 - -
5,941,612 6,039,206 - 2,973,196
20,144,274 6,621,907 1,200,657 3,144,778

$ 376,707 $ 298,474 $ 42,841 $

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes levied for general purposes
Franchise taxes
Public accommodation taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes
Intergovernmental revenues not restricted
to specific programs
Property rents
Loss on retirement of assets
Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning , as restated

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
4
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-type Housing
Activities Activities Total Authority
$ (857,484) 3 - $ (857,484) $ -
(3,818,101) - (3,818,101) -
(5,393,109) - (5,393,109) -
(82,449) - (82,449) -
(1,238,140) - (1,238,140) -
(166,498) - (166,498) -
(691,941) - (691,941) -
(12,247,722) - (12,247,722) -
- 1,584,379 1,584,379 -
- 1,443,666 1,443,666 -
- 42,745 42,745 -
- 3,070,790 3,070,790 -
(12,247,722) 3,070,790 (9,176,932) -
(35,392)
9,927,263 - 9,927,263 -
133,293 - 133,293 -
98,526 - 98,526 -
38,161 - 38,161 -
720,382 - 720,382 -
64,902 - 64,902 -
(11,523) - (11,523) -
138,898 29,100 167,998 330
497,392 (497,392) - -
11,607,294 (468,292) 11,139,002 330
(640,428) 2,602,498 1,962,070 (35,062)
37,203,376 31,153,622 68,356,998 384,466
$ 36,562,948 $ 33,756,120 $ 70,319,068 $ 349,404
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A two-page balance sheet - governmental
funds follows.
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A two-page statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds follows.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (Pages 4 - 5) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 8)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Certain capital outlay costs that are recorded as capital assets

in the government-wide financial statements
Depreciation expense is recorded in the government-wide statements
Net book value of assets retired affects net position

Changes in the net pension asset and related deferred inflows and outflows

of resources as a result of employer contributions, changes in assumptions and
proportionate share and the difference between the expected and actual
experience of the plan

Long-term receivables not available are reported as revenue in the fund financial
statements when collected or currently available, but are recognized as revenue
when earned in the government-wide financial statements.

Notes receivable collections and issuances
Special assessments

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transactions, however, has any effect on net position.
Principal payments and defeasance of long-term debt
Issuance of general obligation debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Changes in interest accrued on long-term debt
Changes in compensated absences

The net revenue of internal service fund activity
is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Pages 4 - 5)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
10

$  (547,202)

1,517,750
(1,677,043)
(18,114)

13,113

76,561
(33,772)

9,347,254
(9,015,000)

31,389
(19,591)

(315,773)

$  (640,428)
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Revenues
Taxes:

General property taxes

Payments in lieu of taxes

Room tax

Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Special assessments
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and human services

Culture, recreation and education

Conservation and development
Total expenditures

Excess expenditures over revenues

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Water utility tax equivalent
Total other financing sources and uses

Change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning, as restated

Fund balances - ending

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 4,890,498 $ 4,887,519 $ (2,979)
32,000 38,161 6,161
102,000 98,342 (3,658)
150 184 34
1,307,232 1,407,283 100,051
457,890 455,639 (2,251)
195,000 181,183 (13,817)
93,000 97,084 4,084
15,000 33,772 18,772
10,250 36,171 25,921
22,600 25,839 3,239
7,125,620 7,261,177 135,557
889,338 860,390 28,948
3,615,998 3,514,199 101,799
1,882,572 1,845,564 37,008
83,167 82,449 718
583,067 590,290 (7,223)
209,422 221,114 (11,692)
7,263,564 7,114,006 149,558
(137,944) 147,171 285,115
349,000 25,000 (324,000)
(327,340) (246,961) 80,379
440,000 472,392 32,392
461,660 250,431 (211,229)
323,716 397,602 73,886
1,665,846 1,665,846 -
$ 1,989,562 $ 2,063,448 $ 73,886

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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A two-page statement of net position -
proprietary funds follows.
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A two-page statement of cash flows -
proprietary funds follows.

86 of 149



ST

"SJUOI)E)S [RIOURUIJ 0} S910U FUIAURdUIO00R 990G

Ieok JO puo - sjuseambo yseo pue yse)
Jeak Jo Suruurdoq - sjuoTeAmba yseo pue yse)
sjuaeTeAInbo Yseo pue [Sed Ul (9SBIOIP) ISBAIOUT JON

sonIATior Sunseaur £q papraoid yseo JoN
QWIOOUT JUSTIISOAT]
SONTAIIOY SUISOAU] WHOIJ SMO[] YSe)

senIATIoR SUTouRUlj poje[al pue [ejides JOJ Pasn Ysed JON
SUOT}OQ[00 JUSWISSIsSe [eroadg
pred 1soxojuy
spuoq uo pred Tedrourig
sjosse Teyrdes Jo UONONIISUOD pue Uonismboy
suonnqLiuos Teyde)

900%ST §  €LLTIS $  86STTE §  ¥160IC §  19T°08CT §
1.8°6T¢ SCIL SSLLYT 79¢°T61 STLELT
(S98°1LT) 1€6°86 cr8EL TSS°81 9¢5°9
8G¢€ T 001°6T €9 €€L°0T Y0E‘S
86¢°1 001°6¢ €9 €€L°0T ¥0€‘8

- (€€9°165°T) (000°57) (€r0T10°]) (065 HSS)

- 08S°1¢ - 96+°C1 7806

- (#8T11H) - (gST'11€) (r¢r'001)

- (#55°096) - (S1¥°999) (6£1°v67)

- (zzziose) (000°s2) (zh8°8t1) (08¢9L1)

- L8801 - 1L8°T01 9L6°9

- (0L1°2L0°T)  (000°ST) (€8€VLE) (L8LTL9)

- (181°6€5) - (€8€VLE) (86L%91)

- (686°T€S) (000°52) - (686°L0S)
(€TTeL1) PE9°€ELT 08L°¢TT SYTY8ET 609671
(665°65€°1) - - - -

- (992°Tt6) - (€8L°829) (€8¥'cId)

- (teL'10€'D)  (0T1°8€EL) (L00°L66) ($99°99¢6)
9L£981°T - - - -

- $  T169°LL6SS 006198 $  SEO0I6T$  9SL'SOTT$
pun,{ 991AIS sTejo, yodiry Anmn A
MNEQ\E JoOM m RETEFNY
|m®ﬁm>ﬁo<
Quﬁogu\woo

spun,] asudiuy - sanIAnoy 2d4}-ssaursng

SONIANOY SupUeBUl] Pojeoy PUE [€)1de)) W01} SAO[] Use)

sanIAT}oR Suroueulj Te3IdEOUOU JOJ Pasn Ysed 19N
spunj Jotjo 03 predor seoUBAPY
SpPUNJ JOYJ0 0} SIQJSULI],
SONIATY suueul] [e}1deouoy Woij SMO[] yse)

. sanianoe Junerado (10] pasn) Aq papiaoid ysed 1oN

Pasn S9JTAIOS PUNJISIUT JOJ SIUSTWARJ

soako1dwo 03 syuatARg

s1orpddns 03 syuowke g

PopIA0Id $291AISS PUNJIIUI WO s}Aroooy]

SIOSn pue s1owo)sno woy sjdreooy
SINIANOY sunerdd() WoIJ SMOL] st

ST0T 1€ YHIINHOHU CHANH dVIA HHL 404

SANNA AYV LATIdOdd

SAMOTA HSVD 40 INHINALV.LS

NOIDNI'TINT 40 ALID

87 of 149



91

“SJUSWISIR)S [RIOURULJ 0) $9j0U JuIAuedwIodde 398

‘K15 o) Aq ‘A19A1109dSa1 ‘SOTI[IIN JoMAS PUE IoJeM OY) 0} PAINGLIIUOD dIdM 0ZE06L TS PUR 620 VL0 TS JO suonIppe [eyde)

900%S1  $  €LLTIS $  86S‘IzE  $ vI60IT $ 19T°08T $
) L16°S1Y - ¥16°01C €00°502
900°S1 968°96¢ 865°1T¢ - 8STSL
(cTzeL1) YE9°CELT 08L°€T1 SYTYSET 609°STT°1
SE9YI SS6°1Z€T SE0°18 S061E9°1 S10909

- 12D - LOT'T (1z€2)

- €8l - - €8 ey

- S98°1 - 6€T°1 979
SE9YI (L8€°LE) (zLisn) 718 (LzLvD)

- (65+°0) - (Szv'D (F€0°D)

- (zh0°81) (g9¢°L1) - (6L9)

- (S15°19) 818°¢1 (08Z°s¢) (£50°0%)

- SSH°0T - - SSH0T

- 69L9LET TSL°66 TSL'999°1 S9Z°019
(858°L81) $  6L911%y $  shLTh ¢ (099°0ST) $ 65619 $
pun,j 991AI9S s[el0], yodiry Armn Armn
[eurou] BTN Jore M
- SOIAIOY

EHEOEEPVOU

spun, osudiouy - sonIAnoY 2dA)-ssoursng

SONIATIOY SUIOUBUL,] PIJe[oy PUE [¢IIAE) YSEIUON

1234 JO pus - syus[eAInba yseo pue yse)

S19SSB PIJOLISAI St popodal SUSUSIAUL PUR YSB)
$)0SSE JUSLIND S PAL0dal SJUSUISIAUI PUB YSBD)
Spunj AIe}olidoxJ - OISO JON JO JUOUIRIE)S
0] SJUS[EAIND] YSE) PUE YSE,) JO UONEBI[DU0IdY

soniAanoe Suneiedo (10J pesn) £q popraoid yseo 10N
syuounsn(pe [e10],
o1qeed sooussqe pajesuaduwiod Ul (SBAIOP) 9SBAIOU]
Spunj Jay30 03 anp Ul (9Sea10ap) ISLIOU]
[1034ed ponIooe ul (9SBaIOIP) ISBAIOU]
o[qeAed syunoooe ur (9sBIO9P) 9SBAIOU]
SMOTJINO PaIIRJep pue uolsuad Jou Ul 9SBaIIP (9SBaIoU])
SOLIOJUDAUI UT 9SBAIIP (9SBaIOU])
SO[qBATE99I JOUJO PUB JOWIOISNO Ul 95BIID (9SBIIU])
Junoooe Surres[d 03 pesieyds uonerardeq
uoneroardeq
:senyiATior Surjerodo (105 pasn) Aq papiaoid ysed
19U 01 (ssof) ewooul Sunerodo o[rou0da1 0} syusunsnlpy
(sso) sawoour SuneradQ

SONIATDY suneiad() (A0] Pas()) Aq PIPIAOI] {seE)
79N 0] (SS07]) owodu] sunetad() JO UOEI[PU0IIY

ST0C 1€ YHOANTOAJ dAANT dVIA FHL H04

SANNA AYVLATIdOdUd

QHDZHHZOU -SMOTA HSVD 40 INAWHLVLS

NOLDNITING 40 ALID

88 of 149



STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CITY OF BURLINGTON

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to county and state
Due to school and VTAE districts
Deposits held

Total liabilities

Net Position

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2015
Developers'
Municipal Reimbursement
Tax Roll Court Fund Totals
$ 7,874,046 $ 23,338 $ 7,455 $ 7,904,839
2,803,032 - - 2,803,032
10,677,078 23,338 7,455 10,707,871
160,880 23,338 - 184,218
2,651,834 - - 2,651,834
7,864,364 - - 7,864,364
- - 7,455 7,455
10,677,078 23,338 7,455 10,707,871
$ - $ - $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles of state and local governments, except the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
has not been presented. Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board calls for the
inclusion of this information as required supplementary information.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Burlington (the city) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-
member council. The accompanying financial statements present the city and its component unit, an entity
for which the city is considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the city.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
burdens on the primary government. Although it is a legally separate entity, standards set forth in
Statement No. 61 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board require that the financial statements of
the Housing Authority of the City of Burlington be reported as a component unit of the city due to the
appointment of its board of commissioners by the city’s mayor. The Housing Authority of the City of
Burlington is reported as a discretely presented component unit to emphasize that it is an entity that is
legally separate from the city. The financial information included in the statement of net position is as of
the Housing Authority’s fiscal year end of August 31, 2015. Complete financial statements for the
component unit may be obtained at its administrative offices.

Riverview Manor
580 Madison Street
Burlington, Wisconsin 53105

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes
in net position) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

19
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and the fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. '

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the city.

Funds are organized as either major funds or non-major funds within the governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary statements. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the government or
meets the following criteria:

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or

enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or
type, and

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund
or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

3. In addition, any other governmental or proprietary fund that the government considers to be
particularly important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund. The city
chose to report its airport enterprise fund as a major fund.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

Major Funds
The city reports the following major governmental funds:

The General fund is the city’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the city
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

TIF No. 3 Debt service fund - accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term obligation debt of the city’s Tax Incremental Financing District No. 3.

TIF No. 5 Capital projects fund - accounts for the financial resources segregated for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities for the city’s Tax Incremental Financing District No. 5.

Environmental TIF District fund - accounts for remediation and other capital costs as authorized by the
Wisconsin statutes.

The city reports the following major proprietary funds:

Sewer utility enterprise fund - accounts for the activities of operating the sewage treatment plant,
sewage pumping stations and collections systems.

Water utility enterprise fund - accounts for the activities of operating the water distribution system.

Airport enterprise fund - accounts for the activities of the city’s airport operations.

Non-Major Funds
The city reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Library Operations

Community Development Block Grant

TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan

Park Development

Library Trust

Police Donations

Wehmhoff

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.
General Debt Service

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources segregated for
the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.

Energy Improvement

Revolving Capital Projects

Infrastructure

Storm water Management

Facade Grants
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued
Additionally, the city reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, on a cost
reimbursement basis. The city’s internal service fund accounts for the city’s risk financing activities
related to its employee health insurance medical claims.

Agency Funds - Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the city in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. For the city, the
agency funds are:

Tax Roll Fund

Municipal Court Bond Fund

Developers’ Reimbursement Fund

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
city’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the city. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than
as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water enterprise fund, the sewer enterprise fund, and the airport enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. The water and sewer enterprise funds also recognize as operating revenue the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity
1. Cash and Investments

The city’s cash and investments consist of cash on hand, checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates
of deposit, the state Local Government Investment Pool and government agency securities. Pooled bank
accounts that are shared between its various accounting funds are maintained. Each fund’s cash balance
represents the residual cash available to it after all other transactions.

Investment of city funds are restricted by state statutes. Permitted investments for the city include any of
the following:

(1) Time deposits maturing within three years in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust
company or savings and loan association which is authorized to do business in Wisconsin. (2)
Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government and its agencies. (3) The
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool and Wisconsin Investment Trust. (4) Bonds or
securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, local exposition district,
local professional baseball park district, city, town, or school district of the state and the University
of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. (5) Any security which matures or which may be
tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within not more than seven years of the date
which it is acquired, if that security has a rating which is the highest or second highest rating
category assigned by a nationally recognized rating agency or if that security is senior to, or on
parity with, a security of the same issuer which has such a rating. (6) Repurchase agreements with
public depositories, if the agreement is secured by federal bonds or securities. (7) Securities of
open-end management companies or investment trusts (mutual funds) if the portfolio is limited to
(a) bonds or securities issued by the federal government or a commission, board or other
instrumentality of the federal government, (b) bonds that are guaranteed as to principal and interest
by the federal government or a commission, board or other instrumentality of the federal
government, and (c) repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by these bonds and
securities.

2. Receivable and Payables

Accounts receivable in all funds report amounts that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and are
stated net of allowances for uncollectable amounts.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve

account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are
not expendable available financial resources.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued
2. Receivable and Payables - Continued

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. Property taxes are
recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue in the appropriate fund in the year levied because the taxes
are restricted to funding the succeeding year’s budget appropriations. In addition to property taxes for the

- city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as well as the local school
districts and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental units billed in the current
year for the succeeding year are reflected as deferred revenues and due to other governments on the
statement of net position. Property tax payments received prior to year end are reflected in the agency
fund. Interest on delinquent property taxes is recognized as revenue when received.

Details of the city’s property tax calendar for the 2015 tax levy follows:
Lien and levy dates

Real estate collection due dates:
First installment due

December 2015

January 31, 2016

Second installment due
Personal property tax due in full

July 31, 2016
January 31, 2016

Final settlement with county August 2016
Tax sale of 2015 delinquent real
estate taxes October 2018

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of the utility enterprise fund are generally used in the operation and maintenance of the water
utility. The inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out method), which is not in excess of market
value. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

4. Restricted Assets

Cash and equivalents of the city’s utilities have been restricted by bond resolution for the following
purposes:

Water Sewer
Utility Utility Totals
Bond reserve account $ 205,003 $ --- $ 205,003
Bond debt service fund : .- 210,914 210,914
Total $ 205,003 $ 210,914 $ 415917
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities

~ columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

-Assets Years
Buildings 50-75
Land improvements 30
Roads 30
Other infrastructure . 30-50
Vehicles - 5-10
Office equipment 6-10
Computer equipment 5

6. Compensated Absences

City employees earn vacation time in varying amounts and it must generally be taken by the employee’s
anniversary date according to city policy. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense) until then. The city has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The
item is related to the city’s proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan and is
deferred and amortized over the expected remaining service lives of the pension plan participants.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued
7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - Continued

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The city has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, property taxes. This amount will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the subsequent year
for which it was levied. The city also has an additional type of item, which arises only under a modified
accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental fund balance sheet. The governmental fund reports
unavailable revenues from special assessments. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period the amount become available.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

10. Fund Equity

Accounting principles generally accepted require the classification of fund balances into various
components. The components used by the city in the fund financial statements are defined as follows:

Nonspendable - This component of fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash such as inventories
and prepaid amounts.

Restricted - This component of fund balance is used when constraints placed on the use of resources are
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or

regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued
10. Fund Equity - Continued

Assigned - This component of fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to
be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This component of fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.

In the government-wide statements, fund equity is termed net position and reported as the following three
components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This represents capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by any debt attributable to the acquisition or construction of the
capital assets net of any unspent debt proceeds.

Restricted net position - This represents net position restricted by external groups, laws and
regulations, or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position -This represents net position that does not meet the criteria of the
above components of net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city’s policy to use
unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed.

11. Utility User Rates
Water utility user rates currently in place were established by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission
effective January 27, 2015. Sewer utility rates currently in place were approved by the city council

effective January 1, 2014.

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
Junds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position.

The city’s proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan is not an available
financial resource; therefore, it is not reported in the fund financial statements:

Net pension asset $§ 786,404

Deferred outflows of resources 806,199

Total restricted for pension benefits $ 1,592,603
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position - Continued

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not

due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$26,142,224 difference are as follows:

Bonds and notes payable $25,699,914
Accrued interest payable 132,390
Compensated absences payable 309,920

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net-assets - governmental activities $26,142,224

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The financial statements include a reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances of governmental funds to the statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation
explains that “Long-term receivables not available are reported as revenue in the fund financial statements
when collected or currently available, but are recognized as revenue when earned in the government-wide
financial statements.” The details of these differences are as follows:

Notes receivable issued $ 178,410
Principal repayments received on and incentive

forgiveness of notes receivable (101,849)
Special assessments levied 3,677
Special assessments collected (37,449)
Net adjustment made $ 42,789

Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

The city reviews and adopts its annual budget by December or earlier of the preceding year. The budgetary
information included in the accompanying financial statements is comprised of the originally approved
budget plus or minus approved revisions of budgeted revenues and expenditures. These budgets are
adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Management control of the budgetary process has been
established at the departmental level of expenditure. A department can be a fund, cost center, program or
other actiVity for which control of expenditures is considered desirable. Budget appropriations for certain

cap1ta1 projects funds are project oriented, often possessing multi-year lives; consequently, budgeted capital
projects expenditures are controlled through fund balances.

The budget may be amended for supplemental appropriations periodically during the year. Budget changes
require a two-thirds approval by the city council. The 2015 budget was not amended.

28
100 of 149



Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - Continued

B. Deficit Fund Equity
The following individual funds had deficit fund balances as of December 31, 2015.

Amount of

Deficit
Environmental TIF district capital projects fund $(1,832,222)
TIF No. 3 revolving loan (91,827)
Infrastructure capital projects fund (1,062,607)
Storm water management (10,703)
Facade grant capital projects fund (8,955)

The deficit fund balance in the environmental TIF district capital projects funds will be eliminated in loan
receivable repayments and tax increments. The deficit fund balance in the infrastructure and TIF No. 5
funds will be eliminated by future borrowing or general fund transfers. The deficit fund balance in the
storm water management and facade grant funds will be eliminated by future general fund transfers or
property tax levies.

C. General Fund Nonspendable Fund Balances

The fund balance of the general fund at December 31, 2015 was nonspendable for the following:

Delinquent personal property taxes $ 462
Prepaid expenditures 13,612
Total $ 14,074

D. Utility Bond Covenant Compliance

The 2011 Waterworks System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A require the maintenance of a bond
reserve account in the amount of $205,000. This account was properly funded at December 31, 2015 (see
Note 1.D.4).

Resolutions for water and sewer revenue bonds also specify that a debt service fund be established for
monthly deposits of principal and interest payments coming due. Monthly deposits to fund the calculated
balances required at year end were not appropriately made; however, bond resolutions additionally stipulate
that amounts transferred to the debt service fund be sufficient to pay principal and interest on bonds as the
payments become due. All principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were made timely.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Cash and Investments

The city’s cash and investments at December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

Weighted

Average

Maturity
(Days)

Petty cash $
Interest bearing checking

and money market accounts
State local government investment pool
Certificates of deposit
Government agency securities

Total carrying amount $ 13,620,125

11,437,066

N/A

Demand
49

694

839

The city addresses the following risks related to its cash and investments:

Credit Risk

The city has policies to minimize credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the

security issuer or backer, by:

* Limiting investments to the types of securities listed in the policy resolution.

*  The common council shall by resolution each year approve the public depositories
within the city that are deemed appropriate for use under the state and federal law.

* Diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any
one type of security or from any one individual issuer will be minimized.

e Maintain balances with its banking financial institutions that do not exceed the combined
amount FDIC insurance and State Deposit Guarantee Fund insurance, along with the amount
of collateralized deposits per an agreement with its primary banking institution. However,
deposits may temporarily exceed the insured and collateralized amounts during periods

when property taxes are collected.

Interest Rate Risk

The city has policies to minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of

securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by:

e Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the

open market prior to maturity.

Custodial Risk

The city has policies to minimize custodial risk, which is the risk that in the event of a financial

institution failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned to it, by:

* Maintaining a list of financial institutions, public depositories and broker/dealers

authorized by resolution to provide deposit and investment services.

* All financial institutions, public depositories and broker/dealers authorized by
resolution to provide deposit and investment services must supply as appropriate
audited financial statements demonstrating compliance with state and federal capital

adequacy guidelines.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

A. Cash and Investments - Continued

Total cash and investments above reconcile to the financial statements as follows:
Statement of net position:

Cash and investments $ 3,634,769
Restricted cash and investments 2,080,517
Total reported on statement of net position 5,715,286
Statement of fiduciary net position 7,904,839
Total Cash and Investments $ 13,620,125

City cash and investments are insured by the FDIC for up to $250,000 for time and savings deposits
(including interest-bearing NOW accounts), and an additional $250,000 of FDIC insurance is available for
demand (non-interest bearing checking accounts) for each bank used. All city deposits are also insured by
the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of $400,000. However, due to the relatively small size of
Guarantee Fund in relationship to the total deposits covered and other legal implications, recovery of material
principal losses of the pool may not be significant to individual municipalities.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an investment fund managed by the State of Wisconsin
Investment Board. The LGIP accepts deposits from governmental units within the State of Wisconsin. The
objectives of the LGIP are to provide safety of principal, liquidity and a reasonable rate of return. The
LGIP is regulated by the Wisconsin Statutes and is not a SEC registered investment. The yield of the LGIP
changes daily and its participants may invest or withdraw any or all amounts at par value at any time. The
LGIP balance reported in the financial statements as $495,160 at December 31, 2015 is at cost basis. The
fair value of the LGIP investment at December 31, 2015 did not materially differ from its cost basis. The
LGIP had a weighted average maturity of 49 days at December 31, 2015.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for the enterprise funds, cash equivalents are temporary cash
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

B. Receivables
Receivables as of yearend for the city’s individual major funds and nonmajor, internal service, and

fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectable accounts, are as
follows: '

TIF No. 3 Nonmajor
Debt Environmental =~ Water Sewer and Fiduciary
General Service TIF Utility Utility Funds Totals
Receivables:
Taxes - current $5,250,125 $3,943,300 $ 39,831 § --- $ - $ 3,614,689 §$ 12,847,945
Taxes - delinquent 462 --- --- --- --- --- 462
Accounts and other 38,718 --- - 691,656 579,993 46,607 1,356,974
Special assessments 26,515 --- - 59,570 84,391 --- 170,476
Notes --- 1,032,870 - --- 1,345,054 2,377,924

Net total receivables  $ 5,315,820 § 3,943,300 $§ 1,072,701 § 751,226 § 664,384 $§ 5,006,350 § 16,753,781
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

B. Receivables - Continued

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the

end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported
in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable  Unearned

Property and other taxes receivable $ --- $ 10,047,527
Water utility property tax equivalent --- 515,875
Special assessments not yet due (general fund) 50,667 ---
Notes receivable 2,377,924 ---
Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds $ 2,428,591 $10,563,402

The city has issued notes receivable which are due for the following purposes:

Date of Interest Original Balance
Purpose Note Rate Principal 12/31/15
Environmental TIF Capital Projects 9/1/10 7.0% 1,160,000 $ 1,032,870
Community Development Block Grant 7/6/10 2.0% 340,000 279,915
Community Development Block Grant 12/31/11 2.0% 400,000 176,000 *
Community Development Block Grant 7/2/13 0.0% 202,500 202,500 *
Community Development Block Grant 6/1/15 Varies 100,000 ** 28,410
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 6/01/09 1.625% 21,425 7,898
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 6/01/11 4.0% 4,896 331
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 1/24/13 0.0% 500,000 500,000 *
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 1/24/13 1.625% 150,000 150,000
Total $ 2,377,924

* - Contains forgiveness provisions for full time employees added.
** - Total commitment is $100,000, proceeds issued during 2015 was $28,410.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements and other structures
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 20,147,482. $ ---  § --- $ 20,147,482
20,147,482 --- --- 20,147,482
9,616,279 279,825 --- 9,896,104
3,625,016 e - 3,625,016
7,375,925 183,883 (217,520) 7,342,288
42,555,923 1,054,042 --- 43,609,965
63,173,143 1,517,750 (217,520) 64,473,373
(3,548,311) (346,358) --- (3,894,669)
(4,702,532) (390,860) 199,406 (4,893,986)
(19,921,852) (939,825) --- (20,861,677)
(28,172,695) (1,677,043) 199,406 (29,650,332)
35,000,448 (159,293) (18,114) 34,823,041
$ 55,147,930 $ (159,293) $ (18,114) $ 54,970,523
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

C. Capital Assets - Continued

Business Type Activities

Water Utility
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Sewer Utility
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and system
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and system
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

$ 260,027 $ ---  § - $ 260,027
260,027 .- o 260,027
3,055,811 --- - 3,055,811
3,214,437 105,491 (5,000) 3,314,928
17,578,400 1,144,917 (42,537) 18,680,780
23,848,648 1,250,408 (47,537) 25,051,519
(991,500) (95,135) - (1,086,635)
(1,231,530) (199,309) 5,000 (1,425,839)
(4,564,245) (336,275) 42,537 (4,857,983)
(6,787,275) (630,719) 47,537 (7,370,457)
17,061,373 619,689 - - 17,681,062

$ 17,321,400 $ 619,689 $ --- $ 17,941,089
$ 778,671 $ ---  § - - $ 778,671
778,671 .- .- 778,671
27,150,676 5,498 --- 27,156,174
6,948,011 136,602 (59,534) 7,025,079
14,208,834 1,797,060 - 16,005,894
48,307,521 1,939,160 (59,534) 50,187,147
(11,854,987) (1,046,112) --- (12,901,099)
(5,675,217) (318,493) 59,534 (5,934,176)
(4,340,604) (302,146) .- (4,642,750)
(21,870,808) (1,666,751) 59,534  (23,478,025)
26,436,713 272,409 - 26,709,122

$ 27,215,384 $ 272,409 §$ --- $ 27,487,793
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

C. Capital Assets - Continued

Business Type Activities - Continued

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Airport
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 125,634 § ---_ § --- 8 125,634
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 125,634 --- - - - 125,634
Capital assets, being depreciated: .

Buildings 602,810 25,000 --- 627,810

Land improvements 2,054,267 --- --- 2,054,267

Machinery and equipment 301,350 --- --- 301,350
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,958,427 25,000 --- 2,983,427
Less: accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (8,854) (18,333) --- (27,187)

Land improvements (996,604) (64,817) --- (1,061,421)

Machinery and equipment (253,414) (16,602) --- (270,016)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,258,872) (99,752) --- (1,358,624)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,699,555 (74,752) - 1,624,803
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 1,825,189 $ (74,7152) $ .- $ 1,750,437

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets, including depreciation of general
infrastructure assets
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Airport

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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$ 36,835
264,083

1,165,334
210,791
$ 1,677,043

$ 610,265
1,666,752
99,752

$ 2,376,769
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

C. Capital Assets - Continued
Discretely Presented Component Unit

Capital asset activity for the Housing Authority for the year ended August 31, 2015 follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depremated
Land $ 87,236 $ ---  § ---  § 87,236
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 2,261,667 . 953,627 (50,000) 3,165,294
Furniture and equipment 183,564 468,995 --- 652,559
Landscaping 137,904 - --- 137,904
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,583,135 1,422,622 (50,000) 3,955,757
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,737,065) (68,784) 50,000 (1,755,849)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 846,070 1,353,838 --- 2,199,908
Total Capital Assets $ 933,306 $ 1,353,838 $ --- $ 2,287,144

Accumulated depreciation by capital asset category for the housing authority is not available.
D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2015, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Water utility (tax equivalent) $ 515,875
General Environmental TIF district 64,043
General TTF No. 3 revolving loan 91,827
General Facade grant fund 8,955
| S 680,700
Advances to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Infrastructure capital projects $ 1,062,607
General Water utility 112,480
General Sewer utility 286,123
TIF No. 3 debt service Environmental TIF district 1,771,462
$ 3232672

The advance by the TIF No. 3 debt service fund to the environmental TIF fund will be paid through tax
increment sharing established by city resolution. The city is establishing a five-year financing plan that is
expected to include settling the general fund advance to the infrastructure fund by a combination of
budgetary allotments and borrowed money. The advances by the general fund and the water and sewer
utilities will be repaid by revenue being generated from rates presently in place and from additional
revenue from future rate increases.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers - Continued

Interfund Transfers: Transfers In
Park Energy
General Debt Develop- Facade Improve-
Fund Service ment Grants ment Totals

Transfers Out:

General fund $  --- $ 201,961 § 25,000 § 20,000 $ --- § 246,961

TIF No. 3 loan fund --- 29,511 . - .- 29,511

Debt service fund --- --- --- --- 31,345 31,345

Airport 25,000 - --- - --- 25,000
Total $§ 25000 § 231,472 § 25,000 $ 20,000 $ 31,345 $ 332,817

E. Long-Term Obligations

Outstanding debt and other long-term obligations of the city at December 31, 2015 follows:

Outstanding Principal
Interest Original At 12/31/15
Issue Rate(s) Principal General Proprietary Purpose

General obligation debt:
2007 refunding bonds 4.1%-4.375% 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ - - - Infrastructure
2010 refunding bonds 2.0%-2.375% 4,290,000 680,000 --- TIF 3 & various
2011 refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 9,120,000 4,835,000 --- TIF 3 -riverfront
2012A street bonds 2.0%-2.8% 3,155,000 3,105,000 - - - Infrastructure
2012B refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 1,460,000 855,000 - - - Pension, ER TIF, various
2014A refunding bonds 0.4%-3.2% 6,200,000 4,135,000 1,600,000 TIF 3, ERTIF, water, sewer
2015A refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 4,215,000 4,215,000 --- TIF3
2015B promissory notes 0.7%-2.25% 4,500,000 4,500,000 --- TIF5
2015 bank note 2.25%-3.25% 300,000 300,000 --- TIF5

Total bonds and notes 24,125,000 1,600,000
Other long-term obligations:
Developer revenue agreement 0% 2,000,000 401,928 --- TIFno.3
2013 energy lease purchase 2.698% 1,147,507 1,084,692 - -- Energy conservation
2013 equipment lease purchase 2.15% 342,149 --- 209,640 Sewer vactor
2014 equipment lease purchase 2.581% 147,220 88,294 - -- DPW chipper truck
Compensated absences (Note 5B.) : 309,920 71,784

Total other long-term obligations 1,884,834 281,424
Utility revenue debt:
2008 CWF bonds (1) 2.569% 4,465,837 --- 3,180,269 Sewer
2008 CWF bonds (2) 2.365% 926,948 --- 632,226 Sewer
2011 refunding bonds 2.0%-3.5% 2,050,000 --- 1,420,000 Water
2012 CWF bonds 2.625% 7,439,911 - 6,825,269 Sewer
2012 CWF water bonds 2.2% 2,044,276 - 1,724,664 Water

Total utility revenue debt --- 13,782,428
Total Long-Term Obligations $26,009,834 $15,663,852
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

A. General obligation debt

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of general obligation debt are as follows:

General City Proprietary Fund
Year Ended Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Totals

2016 § 3,565,000 $ 508,983 $ 65000 $ 35926 $ 4,174,909
2017 3,725,000 438,092 65,000 35,398 4,263,490
2018 3,620,000 371,722 60,000 34,691 4,086,413
2019 2,375,000 309,458 65,000 33,798 2,783,256
2020 2,605,000 . 250,037 65,000 32,459 2,952,496
2021-2025 4,650,000 741,324 560,000 127,324 6,078,648
2026-2030 2,800,000 266,453 720,000 37,505 3,823,958
2031-2032 785,000 22,091 --- --- 807,091

$ 24,125,000 $2,908,160 $1,600,000 $ 337,101 $ 28,970,261

General city and proprietary fund indebtedness represented by general obligation notes totaled $25,725,000
on December 31, 2015. The city’s full faith and credit back these general obligation notes. Transactions
for 2015 are summarized as follows:

Balance - January 1, 2015 $ 18,810,000
Proceeds from bonds and notes 9,015,000
Principal reductions (2,100,000)
Balance - December 31, 2015 $ 25,725,000

B. Community development revenue lease bonds

The city’s community development indebtedness represented by the lease revenue bonds were refunded in
2015 with the proceeds of the 2015A refunding bonds and available cash in the TIF No. 3 fund. These
bonds were issued to finance the riverfront improvement project. Transactions for 2015 are summarized as
follows:

‘Balance - January 1, 2015 $ 6,900,000
Scheduled principal reductions (1,100,000)
Refunding principal payments (5,800,000)
Balance - December 31, 2015 $ ---

C. Tax increment project revenue bonds

Tax increment indebtedness represented by the revenue bonds totaled $401,928 on December 31, 2015.
These bonds were issued for the various developer and construction incentive agreements. The repayments
are based on a tax incremental formula and the balance is expected to be paid in full during 2016.
Transactions for 2015 are summarized as follows:

Balance - January 1, 2015 $ 718,405

Principal reductions (316,477)

Balance - December 31, 2015 $ 401,928
38
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

D. Utility revenue debt

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of utility revenue debt are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31, Principal Interest Totals
2016 $ 855,142 § 347,398 § 1,202,540
2017 - 877,109 324,590 . 1,201,699
2018 899,507 301,196 1,200,703
2019 922,348 277,205 1,199,553
2020 950,640 252,320 1,202,960

2021 -2025 4,434,282 890,040 5,324,322

2026 - 2030 3,749,652 357,185 4,106,837

2031 -2032 1,093,748 26,942 1,120,690

Totals $ 13,782,428 $ 2,776,876 $ 16,559,304

Proprietary fund indebtedness represented by revenue bonds totaled $13,782,428 on December 31, 2015.
The debt is pledged by the assets and revenues of the utilities. The city’s full faith and credit do not back
these revenue bonds. Transactions for 2015 are summarized as follows:

Balance - January 1, 2015 $ 14,616,023
Principal reductions (833,595)
Balance - December 31, 2015 $ 13,782,428

E. Lease purchase agreements

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of lease purchase agreements are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31, Principal Interest Totals
2016 $ 161,723  $ 35,463 $ 197,186
2017 165,699 31,487 197,186
2018 , 169,776 27,410 197,186
2019 70,082 23,234 93,316
2020 71,997 21,319 93,316

2021 - 2025 390,583 75,997 466,580

2026 -2029 352,766 20,605 373,371

Totals $ 1,382,626 $ 235,515 § 1,618,141

Lease purchase agreement balances total $1,382,626 on December 31, 2015. The debt is pledged by the
assets acquired, the city’s full faith and credit do not back the agreements. Transactions for 2015 are
summarized as follows:

Balance - January 1, 2015 $ 1,540,362

Principal reductions (157,736)

Balance - December 31, 2015 $ 1,382,626
39
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

F. Margin of indebtedness

The Wisconsin Statutes restrict the city’s general obligation debt to 5% of the equalized value of all
property in the city. This amount is compared below with the outstanding debt on December 31, 2015:

Equalized Value - 2015 $ 826,054,600
Margin of Indebtedness:
5% of Equalized Value 41,302,730
Outstanding General Obligation
Debt - December 31, 2015 25,725,000
Margin of Indebtedness $ 15,577,730

G. Industrial development revenue bonds

The city issued industrial development revenue bonds during 1998 and 2008 for the benefit of private
entities. The bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2015 totaled $2,075,000 and $2,572,500 for the 1998
and 2008 bonds, respectively. The city has no liability for repayment of these bonds and, consequently,
they are not included in the financial statements.

Note 5 - Other Information

A. Risk Management

The city has purchased commercial insurance policies for various risks of loss related to litigation, theft,
damage or destruction of assets, errors or omissions, injuries to employees, or acts of God. Payments of
premiums for these policies are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the various funds of the city.

The city is also exposed to various risks of loss related to medical claims. The city’s risk management fund
(an internal service fund) is used to account for and finance its uninsured health risks of loss. Under this
program the risk management fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $25,000 for each
individual’s total claims with group claims limited to 125% of expected claims. The city purchases
commercial insurance for health claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. Settled claims have
not exceeded this commercial insurance coverage since inception of the fund.

All funds of the city participate in the health program and are charged amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims and to establish a reserve for future insurance costs. That reserve was $55,228 at
December 31, 2015 and is reported as the internal service fund net position. The accounts payable of
$98,778 reported in the fund at December 31, 2015 is based on the amount of the loss that can be
reasonably estimated at year end. Changes in the fund’s reported liability amount for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 follows:

Beginning End of
Of Year Incurred Claim Year
Year Liability Claims Payments Liability
2015 8§ 84,143 § 1,374233 $ 1,359,598 § 98,778
2014 - 76,769 1,337,774 1,330,400 84,143
40
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

B. Compensated Absences

City employees earn vacation time in varying amounts and it must generally be taken by the employee’s
anniversary date according to city policy. Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of
the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the statement of net
position.

Management has determined that there was no accumulated vacation time and sick leave at year end to be
liquidated with expendable available resources. The amount of accumulated vacation time at December 31,
2015 that has been recorded in the governmental activities of the statement of net position is $142,186.

Employees may accumulate sick leave to a maximum number of days ranging from 150 to 252. It is the
city’s policy to pay for unused sick leave upon retirement or death at a rate of $25 per day or apply it to
future retiree health insurance premiums at a rate of $50 per day. Eligible accumulated sick days of
employees totaled approximately 3,355 at December 31, 2015. The city determined its liability for
accumulated sick pay benefits payable based on the option of applying $50 per day toward health insurance
premiums. At December 31, 2015, estimated sick leave termination benefits of $167,734 have been
recorded in the governmental activities of the statement of net position.

Accumulated vacation and sick pay benefits for employees of the city’s proprietary funds are recorded as a
liability directly in those funds as they are earned by the employees. An additional $36,781 and $35,003 of
accumulated vacation and sick pay, respectively, has been recorded as a liability in the proprietary funds.

C. WRS Pension Plan

Plan description. The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms
may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating City of Burlington on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a year
(880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for
at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.

Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a
retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1,
2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011,
must have five years of creditable service to be vested.

Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62 for
elected officials and State executive participants) are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit.
The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a
formula factor.
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

B. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest years' earnings. Creditable service is
the creditable current and prior service expressed in years or decimal equivalents of partial years for which
a participant receives earnings and makes contributions as required. The formula factor is a standard
percentage based on employment category.

Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation employees) and receive reduced benefits.
Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefits.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

Post-Retirement Adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity payments
from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s. 40.27, Wis. Stat.
An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains (losses), together with
other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined by the system’s
consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other similar factors. For Core
annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be
reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the “floor”) set at retirement. The Core and
Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows:

Core Fund Variable Fund
Year Adjustment Adjustment
2005 2.6% 7%
2006 0.8 3
2007 3.0 10
2008 6.6 0
2009 (2.1) (42)
2010 (1.3) 22
2011 (1.2) 11
2012 (7.0) (7)
2013 (9.6) 9
2014 4.7 25

Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with
Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially
determined contribution rate for general category employees, including teachers, and Executives and
Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees.
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective
bargaining agreement.

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $369,564 in contributions from the employer.
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B. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Contribution rates as of December 31, 2015 are:

Employee Category Employee | Employer
General (including teachers) 6.8% 6.8%
Executives & Elected Officials 7.7% 7.7%
Protective with Social Security 6.8% 9.63%
Protective without Social 6.8% 13.23%
Security

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2015, the City of Burlington reported an asset of $935,748 for its proportionate share of
the net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the total pension
asset used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2013 rolled forward to December 31, 2014. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred
between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date.

The city’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on the city’s share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2014, the city’s

proportion was 0.03809625% , which was a decrease of 0.00020144% from its proportion measured as of
December 31, 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the city recognized pension expense of $350,616.

At December 31, 2015, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows of
of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and $135,654 $0
actual experience
Changes in assumptions $0 $0
Net differences between projected and $453,134 $0
actual earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes in proportion and differences $4,297 $0
between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions
Employer contributions subsequent to $366,189 $0
the measurement date

Total $959,274 $0

43

115 of 149



Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

B. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions — Continued

$366,189 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the city’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) in
the year ended December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
December 31: of Resources of Resources
2015 $116,610 $0
2016 $116,610 $0
2017 $116,610 $0
2018 $116,610 $0
2019 $116,610 $0
Thereafter $10,035 $0

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2013
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability December 31, 2014
(Asset)

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age

Asset Valuation Method: Fair Market Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 7.2%

Discount Rate: 7.2%

Salary Increases:

Inflation 3.2%
Seniority/Merit 0.2% - 5.8%
Mortality: Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments* 2.1%

* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return, actuarial experience and other
Sactors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2012 using experience from 2009 -
2011. The total pension liability for December 31, 2014 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability
calculated from the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation.
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B. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by

~adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Long-Term Real Target
Class Rate of Return Allocation
US Equities 53% 21%
International 5.7 23%
Equities
Fixed Income 1.7 36%
Inflation Sensitive 2.3 20%
Assets
Real Estate 42 7%
Private 6.9 7%
Equity/Debt
Multi-Asset 3.9 6%
Cash ' 0.9% -20%

Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 7.20% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.20% and a
long term bond rate of 3.56%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.20% expected rate of return
implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate,
it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this
single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including
expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the city’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease to 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
(6.2%) Rate (7.2%) (8.2%)
Proportionate share of the net $2,639,907 $(935,748) $(3,759,656)
pension liability (asset)
45
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B. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial statements available at http://legis.wisconsin.gov/lab/ and reference
report number 15-11.

Payable to the WRS. At December 31, 2015 the city reported a payable of $59,227 for the outstanding
amount of contributions to the pension plan for the year ended December 31, 2015.

D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts

The city has established tax incremental financing (TIF) district no. 3 pursuant to a law enacted to provide a
process by which local units of government could finance public works or improvements in blighted areas
from taxes levied by county, city, schools and other local jurisdictions based on the increase in property
values within a designated geographic area. When a tax incremental district is established, the state
determines the aggregate value of taxable property located within the district (the base value). Taxes
derived from levies by all local jurisdictions on property values exceeding the base value determined by the
state are allocated to the city for financing improvements within the district.

During November 2014, the city adopted a resolution amending Tax Incremental District No. 3 to allow for
the sharing of revenues with Tax Incremental E.R. District No. 1 for a five year period as provided for in
section 66.1105(6) of the Wisconsin statutes. Positive tax increments in excess of District No. 3’s (the
donor) project costs are to be allocated to E. R. District No. 1 (the recipient) beginning in 2016.

Summary information on TIF district no. 3 follows:

Date of creation 9/29/1992

End of statutory construction period 9/29/2014

Maximum statutory life of district 9/29/2019
46
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D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts - Continued

The following summarizes the transactions to date of TIF district no. 3.

From
Year Date of
Ended Creation
Accumulated project expenditures :
(including interest costs) $ 400,807 $ 60,884,460
Project Revenues
Tax increments received 4,150,561 48,127,054
Intergovernmental revenues 18,451 730,290
Special assessments/property sales --- 231,751
Rental income - 2,794
Investment income 12,669 2,300,553
City contribution for Wehmhoff Park --- 60,000
Increment allocations from TIF district no. 4 --- 2,009,000
Premium on bonds issued 69,151 69,151
All other --- 3,000
Total project revenues 4,250,832 53,533,593
Net Costs Recoverable (Recovered) $ (3,850,025) $ 7,350,867

The recovery of the above costs is subject to sufficient increments being generated in the district before the
end of'its life. The above costs have been primarily financed by the issuance of general obligation and
lease revenue bonds and notes.

The city created an environmental remediation tax incremental financing district in 2009 pursuant to the
Wisconsin Statutes. The following summarizes the transactions to date of the environmental remediation
tax incremental financing district.

From
Year Date of
Ended Creation
Accumulated project expenditures
(including interest costs) $ 51,556 § 5,253,452
Project Revenues
Tax increments received ‘ 33,683 192,495
Intergovernmental revenues 149 332,214
Interest earned on note receivable 75,749 404,390
Loan repayments 32,755 127,131
Total project revenues 142,336 1,056,230

Net Costs Recoverable (Recovered) $ (90,780) $ 4,197,222
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D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts - Continued

The tax incremental financing district no. 5 was created under the provisions of Wisconsin Statute Section
66.1105 as a “Mixed Use District”. The purpose of that section is to allow a municipality to recover
development and improvement costs in a designated area that the property taxes generated on the increased
value of property after the creation date of the district. That tax on the increased value is referred to as a
tax increment.

Summary information on TIF district no. 5 follows:

| Last Date to Final
Creation Date Incur Project Costs Dissolution Date
December 2, 2014 October 1, 2016 October 1, 2022

The following summarizes the transactions to date of TIF district no. 5.

From -
Year Date of
Ended Creation
Accumulated project expenditures
(including interest costs) $ 4,571,223 $ 4,766,028
Project Revenues
Developer reimbursements 113,622 113,622
Investment income 2,463 2,463
Total project revenues 116,085 116,085

Net Costs Recoverable $ 4,455,138 $ 4,649,943

E. Litigation and Contingencies

The city filed a lawsuit against its garbage and recyclihg collection provider on October 27, 2015 for
overpayments made to the provider during the period 2010 through 2014. The overpayments are estimated
to total approximately $240,000 and the city believes the outcome of the litigation will be favorable.

F. Restatement of Fund Balance/Net Position

The January 1, 2015 funds and net position balances were restated for certain adjustments made. The
adjustments made corrects prior year balances carried forward into 2015 consisting of a decrease in the
January 1, 2015 fund balance and net position of the general fund/governmental activities of $36,462 and
an increase in the net position of the sewer utility fund/business-type activities of $122,780.

G. Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle

The city adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, which revised and established new financial reporting requirements
for governments that provide their employees with pension benefits. The new standards recognize pension
costs as employment services are provided, rather than when the pensions are funded. Financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2014 have not been restated. The cumulative effect of this change was to
increase the December 31, 2015 net position of the governmental-type activities by $1,579,490 and
business-type activities by $299,960.
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H. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated the need for disclosure or recording of transactions resulting from subsequent

events through June 28, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued; and concluded
there were no matters to be disclosed.

I. Housing Authority Component Unit

The Housing Authority of the City of Burlington is a component unit of the city. The fiscal year end of the

housing authority is August 31, 2015. The following is a summary of significant disclosures of the housing
authority.

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The housing authority was formed under the applicable sections of the Wisconsin Statutes to
provide an economically designed and constructed low-rent housing facility for senior citizens in
the City of Burlington. The housing authority is governed by a five-member board of
commissioners appointed by the city’s mayor.

The housing authority uses the accrual basis of accounting.

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets.

2. Cash and investments

The housing authority’s cash and investments consist of deposits at local banks. At August 31,
2015, the housing authority’s deposits totaled $328,699. The carrying value of those deposits on

the housing authority’s financial statements was $323,059. All of the housing authority’s deposits
at August 31, 2015 were covered by FDIC insurance.

3. Restricted cash

The housing authority is required to maintain separate restricted accounts for debt service, security
deposits, and capital improvements and replacements. Restricted cash at August 31, 2015 consisted -

of the following:
Reserve account $ 240,712
Security deposits 33,668
Totals $ 274,380
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

I. Housing Aﬁthority - Continued

4. Long-term debt

Long-term debt of the housing authority at August 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

1977 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was

reamortized on July 1, 2014 at a stated interest rate of

3.625%, however, a Rural Development interest subsidy reduces

the rate paid to 1%. The loan has been deferred for 20 years

after which time monthly principal and net interest payments of

$896 will be due from July 1, 2034 to June 30, 2084. $ 422323

1984 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was

reamortized on July 1, 2014 at a stated interest rate of

3.625%, however, a Rural Development interest subsidy reduces

the rate paid to 1%. The loan has been deferred for 20 years

after which time monthly principal and net interest payments of

$707 will be due from July 1, 2034 to June 30, 2084. 333,867

2014 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was

was authorized on July 10, 2014 for $1,475,978 with principal
payments to commence in September 2015. Interest in not
charged on the loan. Monthly principal payments

for the loan will be $2,464 based on a 50 year amortization. 1,475,978

Total notes payable 2,232,168

Less: current maturities (29,568)
Total long-term debt $ 2,202,600

Interest payments of the scheduled payments below are reported at the subsidized rate of 1%.

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Year ' Principal Interest Total
2016 - 2020 $ 147,840 §$ --- $ 147,840
2021 -2025 147,840 --- 147,840
2026 - 2030 147,840 --- 147,840
2031 - 2035 161,537 8,748 170,285
2035 - 2040 208,383 35,649 244,032
2041 - 2050 426,235 61,830 488,065
2051 - 2060 439,959 48,106 488,065
2061 - 2070 304,865 32,938 337,803
2071 - 2080 176,209 16,176 192,385
2080 - 2084 71,460 1,392 72,852

Total notes payable - August 31,2015 § 2,232,168 $§ 204,839  $2,437,007
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
Wisconsin Retirement System

2014
Proportion of the net pension asset 0.03809625%
Proportionate share of the net pension asset $935,748
Covered-employee payroll $4,351,295
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 102.74%
pension asset

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Wisconsin Retirement System

2014
Contractually required contributions $369,564
Contributions in relation to the contractually required $369,564
contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess) - 80
Covered-employee payroll $4,351,295
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 8.49%
payroll

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Changes of benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in WRS.

Changes of assumptions. There were no changes in the assumptions.
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A two-page combining balance
sheet follows.
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Assets

Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Account receivable
Notes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

CITY OF BURLINGTON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Advances from other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred revenue

Fund Balances
Permanent
Assigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

Community
Development TIF No. 3 Park
Library Block Revolving Develop- Library Police
Operations Grant Loan ment Trust Donations Wehmhoff
$ 65968 $ 34,189 $ - $ 27,629 $ 125241 § 11,550 $ 50,497
405,500 - - - - - -
- 19,840 - - - - -
- 686,825 658,229 - - - -
471,468 740,854 658,229 27,629 125,241 11,550 50,497
9,433 - - 1,263 - ; .
- - 91,827 - - - -
9,433 - 91,827 1,263 - - -
405,500 686,825 658,229 - - - -
- - - 50,000
56,535 54,029 (91,827) 26,366 125,241 . 11,550 497
56,535 54,029 (91,827) 26,366 125,241 11,550 50,497
$§ 471,468 § 740,854 $ 658,229 $ 27,629 § 125241 $ 11,550 § 50497
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Capital Projects Funds

General
Debt Revolving Total
Service Energy Capital Storm Water Economic Facade Nonmajor
Fund Improvement Projects Infrastructure  Management ~ Development Grants Funds
$ - $ - $1,539,542 $ - $ 2,088 $ - $ 1,856,704
406,157 - - - - - 811,657
- - - - - - 19,840
- - - - - - 1,345,054
406,157 - 1,539,542 - 2,088 - 4,033,255
- - 57,637 - 12,791 - 81,124
- - - - - 8,955 100,782
- - - 1,062,607 - - 1,062,607
- - 57,637 1,062,607 12,791 8,955 1,244,513
406,157 - - - - - 2,156,711
- - - - - - 50,000
- - 1,481,905 (1,062,607) (10,703) (8,955) 582,031
- - 1,481,905 (1,062,607) (10,703) (8,955) 632,031
§ 406,157 $ - $1,539,542 $ - $ 2,088 $ - $ 4,033,255
55
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A two-page combining statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances follows.
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CITY BURLINGTON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

Community
Development  TIF No. 3 Park
Library Block Revolving Develop- Library Police
Operations Grant Loan ment Trust Donations Wehmhoff
Revenues
Taxes $ 405,500 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 256,504 - - - - - -
Charges for services 22,815 - - 9,050 - - -
Investment income 304 10,707 148 8 336 5 -
Repayment of note receivable principal - 54,067 2,392 - - - -
All other 2,967 - - : 68 19,266 5,030 -
Total Revenues 688,090 64,774 2,540 9,126 19,602 5,035 -
Expenditures
Public safety - - - - - - 4,987 -
Public works - - - - - - -
Culture, recreation & education 693,624 - - 8,824 12,689 - 3,305
Conservation and development - 30,992 150,000 - - - -
Capital outlay - - - 21,010 - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 693,624 30,992 150,000 29,834 12,689 ‘4,987 3,305
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (5,534) 33,782 (147,460) (20,708) 6,913 48 (3,305)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - - 25,000 - - -
Transfers out - - . (29,511) - - - -
Sale of capital assets - - - - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - (29,511) 25,000 - - -
Net change in fund balances (5,534) ' 33,782 (176,971) 4,292 6,913 48 (3,305)
Fund balances - beginning 62,069 20,247 85,144 22,074 118,328 11,502 53,802
Fund balances - ending $ 56,535 $ 54,029 $ (91,827) § 26,366 $ 125,241 $ 11,550 $ 50,497
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Capital Projects Funds

General
Debt Revolving Total
Service Energy Capital Storm Water Economic Facade Nonmajor
Fund Improvement Projects Infrastructure  Management  Development Grants Funds
$ 200,000 $ - $ 250,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 855,500
- - - - - 205,000 - 461,504
- - - - - - - 31,865
327 - - - 4 - 7 11,846
- - - - - - - 56,459
53,567 - - - - - - 80,898
253,894 - 250,000 - 4 205,000 7 1,498,072
- - - - - - - 4,987
- - - 27,605 - - - 27,605
- - - - - - - 718,442
- - - - 12,790 205,000 10,888 409,670
- 139,126 299,983 - 11,209 - - 471,328
315,778 - - - - - - 315,778
217,809 - - - - - - 217,809
533,587 139,126 299,983 27,605 23,999 205,000 10,888 2,165,619
(279,693) (139,126) (49,983) (27,605) (23,995) - (10,881) (667,547)
231,472 31,345 . - - - 20,000 307,817
(31,345) - - - - - - (60,856)
- - 6,591 - - - - 6,591
200,127 31,345 6,591 - - - 20,000 253,552
(79,566) (107,781) (43,392) (27,605) (23,995) - 9,119 (413,995)
79,566 107,781 1,525,297 (1,035,002) 13,292 - (18,074) 1,046,026
$ ~ $ - $ 1,481,905 $(1,062,607) $ (10,703) § - $ (8955 § 632,031
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131 of 149



CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Taxes
General property taxes $ 4,890,498 $ 4,887,519 $§ (2979
Payments in lieu of taxes 32,000 38,161 6,161
Room tax 102,000 98,342 (3,658)
Interest on personal property taxes 150 184 34
Total Taxes 5,024,648 5,024,206 (442)
Intergovernmental
Shared taxes from state 653,658 663,764 10,106
Exempt computer aid 17,534 38,018 20,484
Fire insurance from state 36,000 33,238 (2,762)
Municipal services 1,812 1,907 95
General transportation aid 546,929 587,837 40,908
Connecting streets 2,807 2,811 4
LRIP and other transportation aid - 13 13
Recycling grants 30,311 30,271 (40)
Clean sweep grant 15,000 12,965 (2,035)
State aid for police training - 3,200 3,200
Safety aid 2,500 3,633 1,133
Forestry grant - 25,000 25,000
DNR aid in lieu of tax 681 679 2
Other intergovernmental revenue - 3,947 3,947
Total Intergovernmental 1,307,232 1,407,283 100,051
Licenses and Permits
Business and occupational licenses 33,390 35,519 2,129
Weights and measures 7,400 7,420 : 20
Wisconsin cable TV licenses 135,000 133,293 (1,707)
Parking permits 700 - (700)
Cell tower permit 50,000 53,252 3,252
Building and electrical permits 224,400 217,438 (6,962)
Right of way and zoning permits 7,000 8,717 1,717
Total Licenses and Permits ' 457,890 455,639 (2,251)
Fines and Forfeitures
Court penalty costs 135,000 129,051 (5,949)
Parking violations 60,000 52,132 (7,868)
Total Fines and Forfeitures $§ 195000 $ 181,183 $ (13,817)
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Charges for Services
Clerk's revenue $ 6,000 $ 6,121 $ 121
Police department 5,000 4,675 (325)
Fire department 12,500 20,400 . 7,900
Street department 12,500 18,816 6,316
Zoning and developer fees 40,000 37,288 (2,712)
Parks fees 17,000 9,784 (7,216)
Total Charges for Services 93,000 97,084 4,084
Special Assessments
Sidewalks and all other 15,000 33,772 18,772
Interest
Investment earnings _ 10,000 35,394 25,394
Interest on special assessments 250 777 527
Total interest 10,250 36,171 25,921
Other
Lease of city property 15,000 11,650 (3,350)
Insurance recoveries 5,000 13,681 8,681
All other 2,600 508 (2,092)
Total Other 22,600 25,839 3,239
Total Revenues $ 7,125,620  $ 7,261,177 $ 135,557
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
General Government
Mayor and city council $ 55200 $ 49,630 $ 5,570
Municipal court 54,582 53,245 1,337
Administration 380,947 358,340 22,607
Finance - treasurer 189,460 193,171 (3,711)
City clerk 50,429 48,429 2,000
Elections 11,220 6,092 5,128
Assessor and board of review 49,500 52,660 (3,160)
City attorney 98,000 98,823 (823)
Total General Government 889,338 860,390 28,948
Public Safety
Police department 2,780,744 2,715,457 65,287
Fire department 721,044 697,789 23,255
Building inspector . 114,210 100,953 13,257
Total Public Safety 3,615,998 3,514,199 101,799
Public Works
Street administration and maintenance 1,087,322 1,027,895 59,427
Street lighting ' 260,000 266,537 (6,537)
Sidewalks, curb and gutters 33,000 31,358 1,642
Storm sewers 7,500 4,836 2,664
Parking structure 4,500 17,547 (13,047)
Garbage collection 363,272 337,915 25,357
Recycling 94,740 95,391 (651)
Landfill 24,238 38,387 (14,149)
Clean sweep 8,000 25,698 (17,698)
Total Public Works 1,882,572 1,845,564 37,008
Health and Human Services
Health officer 76,367 73,367 3,000
Cemetery - 343 (343)
Animal shelter 6,800 8,739 (1,939)
Total Health and Human Services $ 83,167 $ 82,449 $ 718
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Culture, Recreation and Education
Historical society
Senior citizens
Celebrations and festivals
Swimming pool
Parks and forestry

Total Culture, Recreation and Education

Conservation and Development
Economic development
Plan commission
Town annexation revenue sharing

Total Conservation and Development

Total Expenditures

61

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,000 § 1,000 $ -
2,600 2,508 92
- 12,877 (12,877)
- 6,146 (6,146)
579,467 567,759 11,708
583,067 590,290 (7,223)
78,000 108,843 (30,843)
65,500 79,235 (13,735)
65,922 33,036 32,886
209,422 221,114 (11,692)
$ 7,263,564  $ 7,114,006 § 149,558
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

The following is a summary of the bonds and notes payable of the city as of December 31, 2015.

Outstanding
Original Principal

General Obligation Debt Principal 12/31/2015
2007 refunding bonds $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000
2010 refunding bonds 4,290,000 680,000
2011 refunding bonds 9,120,000 4,835,000
2012 street bonds 3,155,000 3,105,000
2012 refunding bonds 1,460,000 855,000
2014A refunding bonds 6,200,000 5,735,000
2015A refunding bonds 4,215,000 4,215,000
2015B promissory notes 4,500,000 4,500,000
2015 Fox River Bank loan 300,000 300,000
$ 25,725,000

2007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund a short-term note and to finance various
infrastructure improvements. Interest is charged at rates of 4.10% to 4.375%.

Principal Interest Total

April 1, 2016 - 31,988 31,988
October 1, 2016 - 31,988 31,988
April 1, 2017 100,000 31,988 131,988
October 1, 2017 - 29,800 29,800
April 1,2018 110,000 29,800 139,800
October 1, 2018 - 27,545 27,545
April 1, 2019 120,000 27,545 147,545
October 1, 2019 - 25,055 25,055
April 1, 2020 130,000 25,055 155,055
October 1, 2020 - 22,325 22,325
April 1, 2021 140,000 22,325 162,325
October 1, 2021 - 19,350 19,350
April 1, 2022 ' 150,000 19,350 169,350
October 1, 2022 - 16,162 16,162
April 1, 2023 150,000 16,162 166,162
October 1, 2023 - 12,975 12,975
April 1, 2024 150,000 12,975 162,975
October 1, 2024 - 9,750 9,750
April 1, 2025 150,000 9,750 159,750
October 1, 2025 - 6,525 6,525
April 1, 2026 150,000 6,525 156,525
October 1, 2026 - 3,262 3,262
April 1, 2027 150,000 3,262 153,262

$ 1,500,000 $ 441,462 1,941,462
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2010 Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to advance refund previously issued debt used for

TIF No. 3, TIF No. 4 and general capital projects. Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 2.375%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 680,000 8,075 688,075
$ 680,000 $ 8,075 688,075
2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund 2001 bonds issued for TIF No. 3 purposes
and 2004 bonds issued for sewer purposes. The bonds are attributed 80.8% to TIF No. 3
and 19.2% to the sewer utility. Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.0%.
1 Principal Interest Total
April 1, 2016 875,000 62,953 937,953
October 1, 2016 - 53,657 53,657
April 1, 2017 905,000 53,657 958,657
October 1, 2017 - 43,475 43,475
April 1,2018 940,000 43,475 983,475
October 1, 2018 - 31,725 31,725
April 1, 2019 970,000 31,725 1,001,725
October 1, 2019 - 17,175 17,175
April 1, 2020 1,145,000 17,175 1,162,175
$ 4,835,000 $ 355,017 5,190,017
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2012 General Obligation Street Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to finance various infrastructure improvements.
Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 2.8%.

Principal Interest Total
April 1, 2016 50,000 37,917 87,917
October 1, 2016 - : 37,417 37,417
April 1, 2017 50,000 37,417 87,417
October 1, 2017 - 36,917 36,917
April 1, 2018 50,000 36,917 86,917
October 1, 2018 - 36,418 36,418
April 1, 2019 165,000 36,418 201,418
October 1, 2019 - 34,768 34,768
April 1, 2020 170,000 34,768 204,768
October 1, 2020 - 33,067 33,067
April 1, 2021 120,000 33,067 153,067
October 1, 2021 - 31,718 31,718
April 1, 2022 125,000 31,718 156,718
October 1, 2022 - 30,311 30,311
April 1, 2023 165,000 30,311 195,311
October 1, 2023 - 28,455 28,455
April 1, 2024 200,000 28,455 228,455
October 1, 2024 - 26,205 26,205
April 1, 2025 190,000 26,205 216,205
October 1, 2025 - 24,068 24,068
April 1, 2026 : 195,000 24,068 219,068
October 1, 2026 - 21,776 21,776
April 1,2027 200,000 21,776 221,776
October 1, 2027 - 19,326 19,326
April 1, 2028 205,000 19,326 224,326
October 1, 2028 - 16,713 16,713
April 1, 2029 215,000 16,713 231,713
October 1, 2029 - 13,864 : 13,864
April 1,2030 220,000 13,864 233,864
October 1, 2030 ' - 10,894 10,894
April 1,2031 385,000 10,894 395,894
October 1, 2031 - 5,600 5,600
April 1,2032 400,000 5,600 405,600

$ 3,105,000 $ 852,951 $ 3,957,951

64
138 of 149



CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund state trust fund loans issued in
2004, 2009 and 2011 for various purposes. Interest is charged at rates of 0.5% to 2.5%.

Principal Interest Total

April 1, 2016 145,000 7,069 152,069
October 1, 2016 - 6,307 6,307
April 1, 2017 145,000 6,307 151,307
October 1, 2017 - 5,401 5,401
April 1, 2018 150,000 5,401 155,401
October 1, 2018 - 4,276 4,276
April 1, 2019 145,000 4,276 149,276
October 1, 2019 - 2,972 2,972
April 1, 2020 155,000 2,972 157,972
October 1, 2020 - 1,383 1,383
April 1, 2021 55,000 1,383 56,383
October 1, 2021 - 750 750
April 1, 2022 60,000 750 60,750

$ 855,000 $ 49,247 $ 904,247
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

The proceeds from this issue were used to refund the 2010A general obligation bonds. The proceeds
from that issue were used to finance capital projects in the TIF No. 3 capital projects, environmental TIF,
water utility and sewer utility funds. Interest is charged on the new debt at rates of 0.4% to 3.2%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 480,000 59,538 539,538
November 1, 2016 - 58,338 58,338
May 1, 2017 485,000 58,338 543,338
November 1, 2017 - 56,640 56,640
May 1, 2018 245,000 56,640 301,640
November 1, 2018 - 55,415 55,415
May 1, 2019 245,000 55,415 300,415
November 1, 2019 - 53,884 53,884
May 1, 2020 255,000 53,884 308,884
November 1, 2020 - 51,971 51,971
May 1, 2021 340,000 51,971 391,971
November 1, 2021 - 49,081 49,081
May 1, 2022 360,000 49,081 409,081
November 1, 2022 - 45,661 45,661
May 1, 2023 370,000 45,661 415,661
November 1, 2023 - 41,776 41,776
May 1, 2024 380,000 41,776 421,776
November 1, 2024 - 37,406 37,406
May 1, 2025 390,000 37,406 427,406
November 1, 2025 - 32,531 . 32,531
May 1, 2026 410,000 32,531 442,531
November 1, 2026 - 26,996 26,996
May 1, 2027 425,000 26,996 451,996
November 1, 2027 - 20,940 20,940
May 1, 2028 435,000 20,940 455,940
November 1, 2028 - 14,415 14,415
May 1, 2029 450,000 14,415 464,415
November 1, 2029 - 7,440 7,440
May 1, 2030 465,000 7,440 472,440

$ 5,735,000 $ 1,164,526 $ 6,899,526
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015A General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund the 2005 TIF District No. 3 lease revenue bonds.
Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.0%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 1,400,000 49,150 1,449,150
November 1, 2016 - 28,150 - 28,150
May 1, 2017 1,405,000 28,150 1,433,150
November 1, 2017 - 14,100 14,100
May 1, 2018 : 1,410,000 14,100 1,424,100

$ 4,215,000 $ 133,650 $ 4,348,650

2015B General Obligation Promissory Notes
The proceeds from this issue were used to finance infrastructure improvements related to TIF District No. 5.
Interest is charged at rates of 0.7% to 2.25%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 - 34,914 34,914
November 1, 2016 : - 34,914 34,914
May 1, 2017 700,000 34,914 734,914
November 1, 2017 - 32,463 32,463
May 1, 2018 715,000 32,464 747,464
November 1, 2018 - 28,531 28,531
May 1, 2019 735,000 28,531 763,531
November 1, 2019 - 23,386 23,386
May 1, 2020 755,000 23,386 778,386
November 1, 2020 - 16,968 16,968
May 1, 2021 780,000 - 16,969 796,969
November 1, 2021 - 9,169 9,169
May 1, 2022 815,000 9,169 824,169

$ 4,500,000 $ 325,778 $ 4,825,778
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2015 Fox River Bank Loan

The proceeds from this issue were used to finance infrastructure improvements related to TIF District No. 5.
Interest is charged at rates of 2.25% to 3.25%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 - 1,988 1,988
November 1, 2016 - 3,431 3,431
May 1, 2017 - 3,413 3,413
November 1, 2017 - 3,431 3,431
May 1, 2018 60,000 3,413 63,413
November 1, 2018 . - 3,050 3,050
May 1, 2019 60,000 3,033 63,033
November 1, 2019 - 2,516 2,516
May 1, 2020 60,000 2,516 62,516
November 1, 2020 - 1,830 1,830
May 1, 2021 60,000 1,820 61,820
November 1, 2021 - 991 991
May 1, 2022 60,000 986 60,986
$ 300,000 $ 32,418 $ 332,418
Outstanding
Original Principal
Other Long-Term Obligations Principal 12/31/2015
2013 vactor lease/purchase - U.S. Bancorp 342,149 209,640
2013 energy conservation program lease purchase - U.S. Bancorp 1,147,507 1,084,692
2014 DPW chipper lease purchase 147,220 88,294
$ 1,382,626

2013 Vactor Lease Purchase

The proceeds from this issue were used to purchase a new sewer vactor truck and chassis. Lease payments
are for 5 years at an interest rate of 2.15%.

Principal Interest Total
December 5, 2016 68,399 4,507 72,906
December 5, 2017 69,869 3,037 72,906
December 5, 2018 71,372 ' 1,535 72,907

$ 209,640 $ 9,079 $ 218,719

68 142 of 149



CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2013 Energy Conservation Program Lease/Purchase
The proceeds from this issue were used for various energy conservation facilities improvements. The total
amount of proceeds available is $1,147,507. Lease payments are for 15 years at an interest rate of 2.698%

Principal Interest Total
February 15, 2016 $ 15,997 $ 7,332 $ 23,329
May 15, 2016 16,105 7,224 23,329
August 15, 2016 16,214 7,115 23,329
November 15, 2016 16,324 7,005 23,329
February 15, 2017 16,434 6,895 23,329
May 15, 2017 16,545 6,784 23,329
August 15,2017 16,657 6,672 23,329
November 15, 2017 16,769 6,560 23,329
February 15, 2018 16,883 6,446 23,329
May 15, 2018 16,997 6,332 23,329
August 15,2018 17,112 6,217 23,329
November 15, 2018 17,228 : 6,101 23,329
February 15, 2019 17,344 5,985 23,329
May 15, 2019 17,461 5,868 23,329
August 15,2019 17,579 5,750 23,329
November 15,2019 17,698 5,631 23,329
February 15, 2020 : 17,818 5,511 23,329
May 15, 2020 17,938 5,391 23,329
August 15, 2020 18,059 5,270 23,329
November 15, 2020 18,182 5,147 23,329
February 15, 2021 18,305 5,024 23,329
May 15,2021 : 18,428 4,901 23,329
August 15, 2021 18,553 4,176 23,329
November 15, 2021 18,678 4,651 23,329
February 15, 2022 18,804 4,525 23,329
May 15, 2022 18,932 4,397 23,329
August 15, 2022 19,060 4,269 23,329
November 15, 2022 19,188 4,141 23,329
February 15, 2023 19,318 4,011 23,329
May 15,2023 19,449 3,880 23,329
August 15,2023 19,580 3,749 23,329
November 15, 2023 19,713 3,616 23,329
February 15, 2024 19,846 3,483 23,329
Balance carried forward $ 589,198 $ 180,659 $ 769,857
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2013 Energy Conservation Program Lease/Purchase - Continued

Principal Interest Total
Balance brought forward $ 589,198 $ 180,659 $ 769,857
May 15, 2024 19,980 3,349 23,329
August 15,2024 20,115 3,214 23,329
November 15, 2024 20,251 3,078 23,329
February 15, 2025 20,388 2,941 23,329
May 15, 2025 20,526 2,803 23,329
August 15, 2025 20,665 2,664 23,329
November 15, 2025 20,804 2,525 23,329
February 15, 2026 20,945 2,384 23,329
May 15, 2026 21,086 2,243 23,329
August 15, 2026 21,229 2,100 23,329
November 15, 2026 21,373 1,956 23,329
February 15, 2027 21,517 1,812 23,329
May 15, 2027 21,663 1,666 23,329
August 15, 2027 21,809 1,520 23,329
November 15, 2027 21,956 1,373 23,329
February 15, 2028 - 22,105 1,224 23,329
May 15, 2028 22,254 1,075 23,329
August 15, 2028 22,405 924 23,329
November 15, 2028 22,556 773 23,329
February 15, 2029 22,709 620 23,329
May 15, 2029 : 22,862 467 23,329
August 15, 2029 23,017 312 23,329
November 15, 2029 23,279 156 23,435
$ 1,084,692 $ 221,838 $ 1,306,530

2014 DPW Chipper Lease Purchase

The proceeds from this issue were used to purchase a new single axle chipper truck. Lease payments

are for 5 years at an interest rate of 2.581%.

Principal Interest Total
October 1, 2016 28,685 2,279 30,964
October 1, 2017 29,425 1,538 30,963
October 1, 2018 30,184 779 30,963
$ 88,294 $ 4,596 $ 92,890
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Outstanding
Original Principal
Utility Revenue Debt Principal 12/31/2015
2008 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-02) $ 4,465,837 $ 3,180,269
2008 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-04) 926,948 632,226
2011 water revenue refunding bonds 2,050,000 1,420,000
2012 water revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5475-01) 2,044,276 1,724,664
2012 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-09) 7,439,911 6,825,269
$ 13,782,428
2008 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-02)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.569%.
Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 $ 209,156 $ 40,851 $ 250,007
November 1, 2016 - 38,164 38,164
May 1, 2017 214,529 38,164 ’ 252,693
November 1, 2017 - 35,408 35,408
May 1, 2018 220,040 35,408 255,448
November 1, 2018 _ : - 32,582 32,582
May 1, 2019 225,693 32,582 258,275
November 1, 2019 - 29,683 29,683
May 1, 2020 231,491 29,683 261,174
November 1, 2020 - 26,709 26,709
May 1, 2021 © 237,438 26,709 264,147
November 1, 2021 - 23,660 23,660
May 1, 2022 243,538 23,660 267,198
November 1, 2022 - 20,531 20,531
May 1, 2023 249,794 20,531 270,325
November 1, 2023 - 17,323 17,323
May 1, 2024 256,211 17,323 273,534
November 1, 2024 - 14,032 14,032
May 1, 2025 . 262,794 14,032 276,826
November 1, 2025 - 10,656 10,656
May 1, 2026 269,545 10,656 280,201
November 1, 2026 - 7,193 7,193
May 1, 2027 276,469 7,193 283,662
November 1, 2027 - 3,642 3,642
May 1, 2028 283,571 3,642 287,213

$ 3,180,269 $ 560,017 $ 3,740,286
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2008 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-04)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.365%.

Principal Interest Total

May 1, 2016 $ 46,179 $ 7,476 $ 53,655
November 1, 2016 - 6,930 6,930
May 1, 2017 47,271 6,930 54,201
November 1, 2017 - 6,371 6,371
May 1, 2018 , 48,389 6,371 54,760
November 1, 2018 - 5,799 5,799
May 1, 2019 49,534 5,799 55,333
November 1, 2019 - 5,213 5,213
May 1, 2020 50,705 5,213 55,918
November 1, 2020 - 4,614 4,614
May 1, 2021 51,904 4,614 56,518
November 1, 2021 _ - 4,000 4,000
May 1, 2022 53,132 4,000 57,132
November 1, 2022 - 3,371 3,371
May 1, 2023 54,388 3,371 57,759
November 1, 2023 - 2,728 2,728
May 1, 2024 55,675 2,728 58,403
November 1, 2024 ' - 2,070 2,070
May 1, 2025 56,991 2,070 59,061
November 1, 2025 - 1,396 1,396
May 1, 2026 58,339 1,396 59,735
November 1, 2026 - 706 706
May 1, 2027 59,719 706 60,425

$ 632,226 $ 93,872 $ 726,098
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2011 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund the 2002 water revenue bonds that were issued
to finance various water utility improvements. Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.5%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 $ 185,000 $ 22,449 $ 207,449
November 1, 2016 - 19,674 19,674
May 1, 2017 190,000 19,674 209,674
November 1, 2017 - 16,823 16,823
May 1, 2018 195,000 16,823 211,823
November 1, 2018 - 13,898 13,898
May 1, 2019 200,000 . 13,898 213,898
November 1, 2019 - 10,899 10,899
May 1, 2020 : 210,000 10,899 220,899
November 1, 2020 - 7,539 7,539
May 1, 2021 215,000 7,539 222,539
November 1, 2021 - 3,938 3,938
May 1, 2022 225,000 3,938 228,938

$ 1,420,000 $ 167,991 $ 1,587,991
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2012 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5475-01)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various water utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.2%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 $ 91,100 $ 18,971 $ 110,071
November 1, 2016 - 17,969 17,969
May 1, 2017 93,105 17,969 111,074
November 1, 2017 - 16,945 16,945
May 1, 2018 95,153 16,945 112,098
November 1, 2018 - 15,898 15,898
May 1, 2019 97,246 15,898 113,144
November 1, 2019 - 14,829 14,829
May 1, 2020 99,386 14,829 114,215
November 1, 2020 - 13,735 13,735
May 1, 2021 101,572 13,735 115,307
November 1, 2021 : - 12,618 12,618
May 1, 2022 ’ 103,807 12,618 116,425
November 1, 2022 - 11,476 11,476
May 1, 2023 106,090 11,476 117,566
November 1, 2023 - 10,309 10,309
May 1, 2024 108,424 10,309 118,733
November 1, 2024 - 9,117 9,117
May 1, 2025 : 110,810 9,117 119,927
November 1, 2025 - , 7,898 7,898
May 1, 2026 . 113,248 7,898 121,146
November 1, 2026 - 6,652 6,652
May 1, 2027 115,739 6,652 122,391
November 1, 2027 - 5,379 5,379
May 1, 2028 118,285 5,379 123,664
November 1, 2028 - 4,078 4,078
May 1, 2029 120,888 4,078 124,966
November 1, 2029 - 2,748 2,748
May 1, 2030 123,547 2,748 126,295
November 1, 2030 - 1,389 1,389
May 1, 2031 126,264 1,389 127,653

$ 1,724,664 $ 321,051 $ 2,045,715
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2012 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-09)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.625%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2016 $ 323,707 $ 89,582 $ 413,289
November 1, 2016 - 85,333 - 85,333
May 1, 2017 332,204 85,333 417,537
November 1, 2017 - 80,973 80,973
May 1, 2018 340,925 80,973 421,898
November 1, 2018 - 76,498 76,498
May 1, 2019 349,874 76,498 426,372
November 1, 2019 , - 71,906 71,906
May 1, 2020 359,058 71,906 430,964
November 1, 2020 - 67,193 67,193
May 1, 2021 368,483 67,193 435,676
November 1, 2021 ' - 62,357 62,357
May 1, 2022 v 378,156 62,357 440,513
November 1, 2022 - 57,394 57,394
May 1, 2023 388,083 57,394 445,477
November 1, 2023 © - 52,300 52,300
May 1, 2024 398,270 52,300 450,570
November 1, 2024 - 47,073 47,073
May 1, 2025 408,724 47,073 455,797
November 1, 2025 - 41,709 41,709
May 1, 2026 419,453 41,709 461,162
November 1, 2026 - 36,203 36,203
May 1, 2027 430,464 36,203 466,667
November 1, 2027 - 30,553 30,553
May 1, 2028 441,764 30,553 472,317
November 1, 2028 - 24,755 24,755
May 1, 2029 453,360 24,755 478,115
November 1, 2029 - 18,805 18,805
May 1, 2030 465,261 18,805 484,066
November 1, 2030 - 12,698 12,698
May 1, 2031 477,474 12,698 490,172
November 1, 2031 - 6,431 6,431
May 1, 2032 490,009 6,431 496,440

$ 6,825,269 $ 1,633,944 $ 8,459,213
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